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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in accommodation operations,
provision of accommodation consultations and accommodation
facilities management services and other related business. Although
the sudden COVID-19 outbreak at the beginning of 2020 caused a
serious impact on the operation of the hotel industry, by persisting in
stringent control and management measures with respect to pandemic
prevention, governments at all levels in the PRC continued to introduce
various favorable policies to pave the way for the resumption of work
and production among various industries, which facilitates the pace of
economic recovery. As a result of effective control over the COVID-19
pandemic, the domestic tourism economy and consumer confidence
were restored, particularly evidenced by the comprehensive restarting of
interprovincial tourism, as well as the combined effects of the peak tourist
seasons in both the summer holiday and Golden Week in October, and
the hotel business of the Group also demonstrated the trend of U-shaped
recovery and gradually recorded a positive growth. Driven by revenue
from accommodation consultations and accommodation facilities
management services, the revenue of the Group for the Year increased
slightly as compared with the corresponding period of the last financial
year. With revenue from accommodation facilities management and
accommodation management service, the decrease in other operating
expenses also lowered the burden for the comprehensive loss for the
Year.

In 2020, the Group pursued the strategic initiative of focusing on our
main business expansion and strengthening our core competence,
while steadily promoting our brand upgrade and new brand incubation
to improve our brand system. By diversifying hotel brands, we made
improvement in service quality and hotel features, which unleased their
unique personalities and cultural connotations. By providing different
products and services to our customers, we increased our customers’
awareness of each of our brands, which helped improve our brand value
and economic benefits in the midst of achieving market expansion. Our
newly established “LYAR” (3 28) brand is positioned in five areas, namely,
exploration, technology, vitality, art, and aspiration, and is expected
to provide technologically active and artistically restive space to the
adventurous and tech-savvy business community, in order to ultimately
achieve the rapid development of brand value and influence by exploring
the limitations for the art of living, as well as experiencing the brand
concept that encourages the aspiration for future technology.
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OUTLOOK

Despite the global outbreak of the pandemic during the Year, the Board
is optimistic that the tourism industry in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) will remain on a strong growth path in medium to long term and
considers the impact of the coronavirus on the accessibility and business
and tourist activities in the PRC to be temporary. The Board will continue
to strive for improvements in the operating results of the Group and to
look for investment and expansion opportunities in Greater Bay Area and
Hong Kong. Further, the development of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area, such as the completion of High Speed Rail (Hong
Kong Section), Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge, and other sizeable
infrastructure projects, will bring new customer base to domestic hotel,
service apartments and other markets with ongoing competition, and
it is expected that the accommodation service market will continue to
embrace opportunities in the future.

On top of consolidating the current business operations, the Group
will continue to focus on core businesses by developing the principal
businesses related to accommodation, and commit itself to improving
its service standard and profitability. Leveraging on its current strengths
to boost its brand influence, the Group will actively tap into the network
of new management to strengthen its operation scale through its own
expansion and acquisition of different accommodation projects, entering
into management contracts and cooperative or joint ventures projects.
In exercising caution over project investments, the Group doubles down
on its efforts to expand its core business segment. Seizing investment
opportunities in the prospective markets, the Group will identify new
sources of profitability and growth to safeguard the sustainability of the
Group. The incoming opening of Chengdu Branch and Wuhan Branch,
as well as the accommodation facilities management service and
accommodation consultations services, will also expand the Group’s
operation scale. On the other hand, the Group will continue to ride on
the policies in effect during this year to continuously optimize its internal
procedures and enhance management efficiency. To further achieve
breakthroughs in the development momentum, the Group will facilitate
the organic growth of its intrinsic corporate values and enhance its
business vitality. The objectives will be to improve revenue, operating
profit and the number of rooms under management.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRREBZERERA A

RE

BERNFREERER  EFEQUTFEARK
A (TR B ) kil 3 0 P B E R BRI AR R
Froa g RIDRIFEE - URATENESE T
BEXEsMRERD T ERERN - EF
SREERNNEAEENEEREL N ARE
EMBESKRERERKS -BE  HBEE
BRANERNER  IREEBRIBINEX
BERBEENENK - BRHERFOAME
JERABENSEAMNELE - FAHRKH
EERBEN S KSR

AEBEZERALEENER L BEHEDER
FEE  BREBHBENTZEXZBALBNETT
REBERGKF - FHERTBHNEES - A
REEZREMETEN  RREAMEER
MAKE SRR S FRA KB TRMNEREERE -
RINERAHNNAFRGERE NEANEE
BEMR - BILRBERER - AL EBR
RARNE - LEEBEDSRERES - S5
BRI R B R ARE R B AT RHE R - AR
o B B TR B B 3 e 18 AR IR AR TS S AT
BRBARBG I AAARNEEZEZHRER - R
AEENGEREFAREREREN T - &8
BIEAMRIELIRTTERRE  RECERNE
BEER BREXEN  BRENERRZRD
BIEE RIERRR - BIRRAE R - 28
BNMEENEHEBE



®

Chairman’s Statement

EERE

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS e |

|, acting on behalf of the Board, express my utmost appreciation to AAZRXEES @ AAEENEERE - &
our shareholders, customers, and business partners for their long-term  FIA R EEBLEBUAGB L - B — B ARE K
confidence in and support for the Group, as well as my gratitude towards ~EEMETNLHE  ARKHAEEEREES
the management and all of our employees for their commitment and T ¥ EBEZEREFAIELAE2OIRAMTEE 5 -
effort to our growth.

Yuan Fuer RER

Chairman FE

On Behalf of the Board REESE

27 February 2021 —E-—%¥-A-++H

Annual Report 2020
—z-zrrn Q



4

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in accommodation operations,
provision of accommodation consultations and accommodation facilities
management services and other related businesses. The Group is also
involved in the money lending business. For the financial year ended
31 December 2020 (“the Year”), the Group has 3 leased-and-operated
hotels under operation and 2 leased-and-operated hotels under
development. Revenue from accommodation operations during the
Year was mainly derived from rental of accommodation and conference
facilities and provision of accommodation facilities management and
accommodation consultations services.

In 2020, the PRC’s gross domestic product exceeded the threshold of
RMB100 trillion for the first time at its annual economic growth rate of
2.3%, making it the only major economy to achieve a positive economic
growth in the world under the severe impact of the COVID-19 outbreak.
Although the sudden COVID-19 outbreak at the beginning of the Year
caused a serious impact on the operation of the hotel industry, by
persisting in stringent control and management measures with respect to
pandemic prevention, governments at all levels in the PRC continued to
introduce various favorable policies to pave the way for the resumption of
work and production among various industries, which facilitates the pace
of economic recovery. As a result of effective control over the COVID-19
pandemic, the domestic tourism economy and consumer confidence
were restored, particularly evidenced by the comprehensive restarting of
interprovincial tourism, as well as the combined effects of the peak tourist
seasons in both the summer holiday and Golden Week in October, and
the hotel business of the Group also demonstrated the trend of U-shaped
recovery and gradually recorded a positive growth. Driven by revenue
from the accommodation consultations and accommodation facilities
management services, the revenue of the Group for the Year amounted
to HK$50,678,000, representing an increase of approximately 11.2% as
compared with revenue of HK$45,585,000 the same period of the last
financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In 2020, the Group pursued the strategic initiative of focusing on our
main business expansion and strengthening our core competence,
while steadily promoting our brand upgrade and new brand incubation
to improve our brand system. By diversifying hotel brands, we made
improvement in service quality and hotel features, which unleased their
unique personalities and cultural connotations. By providing different
products and services to our customers, we increased our customers’
awareness of each of our brands, which helped improve our brand value
and economic benefits in the midst of achieving market expansion. Our
newly established “LYAR” (%38) brand is positioned in five areas, namely,
exploration, technology, vitality, art, and aspiration, and is expected
to provide technologically active and artistically restive space to the
adventurous and tech-savvy business community, in order to ultimately
achieve the rapid development of brand value and influence by exploring
the limitations for the art of living, as well as experiencing the brand
concept that encourages the aspiration for future technology.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 24 January 2020
and the section headed “Significant investment held, material acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, and future
plans for material investments or capital assets” below, the Group
entered into separate agreements with partners in Chengdu and Wuhan
to provide capital to two joint venture companies for the development
of accommodation business in Chengdu and Wuhan respectively.
The newly set up joint venture companies also entered into tenancy
agreements with separate landlords for securing places for establishment
of Chengdu Branch and Wuhan Branch respectively, which is expected
to provide around 227 accommodation places in total and thus increases
the number of available rooms of the Group. The service operation
is expected to commence in the first quarter of 2021. The Group
will continue to look for investment and enhancement opportunities
to broaden its revenue base and source of income, and explore
the provision of various accommodation projects, accommodation
consultations and accommodation facility management services in
the PRC, Hong Kong or overseas to optimize the overall hotel assets
structure and improve efficiency.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Despite the Group recorded a decrease in total comprehensive loss as
compared to the previous year, the Group continued to dedicate itself to
improving the performance of its existing accommodation projects and
stimulating its accommodation facility management and accommodation
consultations services by implementing effective sales and marketing
plans, including cooperation agreements with new tourism intermediaries
and active liaison with various corporate customers. The Group also
continued to adopt a series of operation improvement schemes during
the Year such as improving accommodation ancillary facilities and
implementing staff performance programs. By seeking customers’
feedback from time to time, reviewing comments available from online
travel agencies and their platforms, as well as actively carrying out
improvement plans to increase service quality, customers’ satisfaction
and employees’ morale, the Group aimed to boost up revenue and
improve performance in all aspects.

In addition to the frontline operation of various accommodation projects
and services, we also took important actions to control back office and
other expenses, including reviewing human resource efficiency and
making corresponding adjustments, maintaining cost saving measures
to lower corporate expenses and reviewing performance from time to
time by comparing to financial budgets, so as to maximize the Group’s
benefits.

The following is an update on the Group’s existing business:
Accommodation Projects under Operation
Huizhou Branch

Huizhou Branch is situated at Xunliaowan of Huizhou, which is easily
accessible as Huizhou is located near the Pearl River Delta neighbouring
Shenzhen and Hong Kong with direct flights to other cities in the PRC.
Xunliaowan offers our guests opportunities to enjoy a beach vacation in
the region, become a beach bum, spend their days lazing on the sand
and take in the sun followed by a dip in the clear waters. Also, with both
historic scenic spots and the coast along the Pacific Ocean, Huizhou
attracts domestic and foreign tourists to spend their holiday in the
region. The Group’s management also decided not to renew the tenancy
agreement of one of the two separate blocks of buildings in which
Huizhou Branch was operating after its expiry on 31 March 2020 and to
devote the available resources to the remaining block of Huizhou Branch.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

Thanked to the principle of internal economic circulation in the PRC,
Huizhou Branch at the resort area did not record a huge decrease in its
total annual revenue despite the impact of the pandemic. The revenue
of Huizhou Branch started to pick up as early as in the second quarter
of 2020 as the market gradually recovers from the pandemic and the
newly promoted “Staycation” trend in the region. Given the popularity of
Huizhou Branch gained from prior years and with the commitment to the
development of the Greater Bay Area of the PRC Government, the Group
looks forward to the increasing number of guests visiting the region which
will boost the performance of Huizhou Branch in the long run.

Nanshan Branch

Nanshan Branch is situated near the Hong Kong-Shenzhen Western
Corridor and the Shekou Port. It has five floors and a total GFA of
approximately 7,000 sg.m, comprising 189 rooms. The project is located
just beside the subway exit of Nanshan Station of Shenzhen Metro Line
No. 11 and it takes approximately 30 minutes from Nanshan Branch to
the airport. Also, Nanshan Branch is in the proximity of the Coastal City
Commercial Area, Shenzhen Book Mall (Nanshan), Shenzhen Bay Sports
Centre Stadium and theme parks such as the Window of the World,
Overseas Chinese Town Harbour and the Sea World, which provides
stable demand for temporary accommodation from both business and
tourism guests.

Internal renovation work completed in recent years at Nanshan Branch
helped increase the number of rooms, as well as the satisfaction of
hotel guests. With the pandemic in the PRC brought under control as
early as in the second quarter of the year, resulting in the rapid recovery
of consumption from and number of local travelers, Nanshan Branch
recorded an increase in its revenue in the second half of the year. Given
the ever-changing market conditions driven by government policies
implemented to combat the pandemic, the Group will continue to review
its marketing strategies and re-examine the model of cooperation and
sales plans with tourism intermediaries and corporate customers in order
to improve revenue in the long run.
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Baoan Branch

Baoan Branch has four floors and a total GFA of approximately
1,700 sg.m, comprising 46 rooms. Surrounded by prosperous
commercial streets and pedestrian streets, the accommodation project
is located at the central area of administration, culture, sport, commerce
and entertainment in the Baoan District, “a core district of the Bay Area”,
and is within close proximity of Haiya Mega Mall, a famous commercial
center in Shenzhen, and Bao’an Sports Center, the largest gymnasium
in Shenzhen where the 2011 Summer Universiade was held. It is a
20-minute drive from the Baoan International Airport, and takes within 10
minutes by walk from the Coach Terminal, the Xixiang Pier, and Lingzhi
Station of Shenzhen Metro Line 5 (near Lingzhi Park). It has access to
efficient road, sea and air transportation with convenient life.

Although the revenue of Baoan Branch was impacted by the pandemic
in the first quarter of 2020, the occupancy rate of the branch started
to restore its normal level in the second quarter of 2020, due to the
comprehensive renovation in recent years and the improving pandemic
situation. Driven by the support and commitment by the sales team, the
revenue of the branch for the Year increased as compared with that last
financial year.

Accommodation Projects under Development
Chengdu Branch

Chengdu Branch is situated near Tianfu Square. It has two floors and a
total GFA of approximately 7,600 sg.m. Tianfu Square is at the centre of
the city and is accessible by both Chengdu Subway Line No. 1 and Line
No. 2. The hotel is in the proximity of Chengdu Museum, Mao Zedong
Statue, Sichuan Art Museum, Sichuan Science and Technology Museum
and a selection of department stores and shopping malls. The renovation
at Chengdu Branch nearly came to an end, and therefore its business
operation is anticipated to commence in the first quarter of 2021, which is
expected to provide up to around 107 accommodation places.
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Wuhan Branch

Wuhan Branch has five floors and a total GFA of approximately
9,000 sg.m. This branch is located in the Runwin International Building
on Xin Cheng Yi Road. Wuhan Branch is in the proximity of Wuhan Five
Rings Sports Centre and the new government building. The airport or
train station can also be reachable from the branch in approximately
30 minutes. The renovation at Wuhan Branch nearly came to an end,
and therefore its business operation is anticipated to commence in the
first quarter of 2021, which is expected to provide up to around 120
accommodation places.

Accommodation Facility Management and Accommodation
Consultations Services

In view of the uncertainty hovering over revenue from the accommodation
operation business due to the pandemic, the Group continued to
explore ways to broaden and stabilise its revenue base and source of
income as well as to improve the performance of the Group such as
the provision of accommodation facility management and consultations
services which are considered to be less impacted by the pandemic.
For facility management services, during the Year, the Group provided
accommodation facility outsourcing management services including
services such as professional cleaning, sterilization, inventory supply
management and quality management to third party customers.

For accommodation consultations services, the Group provides
consultations services for setting up hotels, guesthouses, inns, resorts,
service apartments, elderly apartments, homestays, dormitories, staff
quarters and other accommodation projects, such as performing market
research and investment feasibility analysis, provision of accommodation
construction and design consultations services and accommodation
pre-commencement, opening and construction management
services to customers. During the Year, the Group strengthened its
business operations involving accommodation facility management
and accommodation consultations services, which are expected to
continuously improve the performance of the Group in the foreseeable
future.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the Year, the Group recorded revenue of HK$50,678,000, compared
with HK$45,585,000 for the last financial year, representing an increase
of approximately 11.2%. The Group recorded a total comprehensive loss
of HK$1,572,000 for the Year compared with HK$15,734,000 for the
last financial year, representing a decrease of approximately 90%. The
decrease in comprehensive loss was mainly attributable to the revenue
from accommodation facilities management and accommodation
consultation services. The decrease in other operating expenses also
lowered the burden for the comprehensive loss for the Year.

The following table shows the key information of all the Group’s leased-
and-operated accommodation rooms for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 respectively.

g E) ]

REFE - NEBES W 250,678,000 T
{88 B 8 2 45,585,000 7T FHIE 4
112% - AEBRAFEHBSE2HEEERETE
1,572,000/ 7T + 8 - {EH BUEFE 215,734,000
BT WA HI0% - EHEEERDEEHER
8 ie YR ANME B w5 s BRI P s SR 9 U A BT 2R
Emg@ERBIMARAFERABERES

= o

TRHEJAEFEL2FHSKLLEEEEE DR
BT CEFER _E-AF+-_A=+—H
IFEZEEER -

2020 2019

—B=FF —TNF

Total available room nights 48] B R R 2R 152,148 237,935
Occupancy rate ANE= 71.04% 60.04%
ARR (RMB)* FHEM(ARET)” 273.3 296.5
RevPAR (RMB)" FHEREERAARET)! 194.2 178.0

ARR: the room revenue of all accommodation rooms divided by the total
occupied room nights

# RevPAR: the room revenue of all accommodation rooms divided by the total
available room nights

For the Year, total available room nights of the Group decreased by
85,787 nights or approximately 36.1% as compared with last financial
year due to the expiry of tenancy agreements of Luohu Branch and
one of the two separate blocks of buildings of Huizhou Branch during
the Year. The occupancy rate and RevPAR of the Group increased by
11% and increased by RMB16.2 or approximately 9.1% respectively as
compared with last financial year, mainly due to the average occupancy
rate increased due to the “Staycation” promotion campaign. Meanwhile,
the ARR during the Year decreased by RMB20 on a year-on-year basis as
compared with that of last financial year.
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Operating Costs

The total operating costs decreased by HK$4,683,000, or approximately
8.8%, from HK$53,048,000 for last financial year to HK$48,365,000 for
the Year.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets increased by HK$3,278,000 or
approximately 22.6% due to the newly established Chengdu Branch
and Wuhan Branch, offsetting a decrease in the depreciation charge
arising from the expiry of tenancy agreements of Luohu Branch and
one of the two separate blocks of buildings of Huizhou Branch during
the Year. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment decreased by
HK$929,000 or approximately 23.2%, primarily due to the renewal of
tenancy agreement of Nanshan Branch in July 2019 which extended the
useful lives of the leasehold improvements of the branch and lowered the
depreciation charge accordingly.

Employee benefit expenses decreased by HK$2,412,000 or 14.3%
mainly attributable to lay off of manpower due to expiry of the tenancy
agreements of some branches during the Year. Utilities decreased by
HK$695,000 or approximately 29.0% mainly attributable to the reduced
electricity charge due to government refund during the Year.

Other operating expenses decreased by HK$3,925,000 or approximately
25.7% mainly due to the impact of the cost saving measures adopted by
the Group during the Year to lower the operating costs.

The following table shows the total operating costs for the financial years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2020:
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2020 2019

—ECoSE —NEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FBx FHET

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 17,752 14,474
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - BELERETE 3,069 3,998
Employee benefit expenses EERAMAX 14,506 16,918
Utilities NSRS 1,705 2,400
Other operating expenses Hih i@ 11,333 15,258
48,365 53,048
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Finance costs

The finance costs increased by HK$1,879,000 to HK$5,505,000 as
compared with last financial year. It mainly represented the interests
accrued from lease liabilities arising from the conclusion of new tenancy
agreements of Chengdu Branch and Wuhan Branch, and offset early
repayment of the interest expenses incurred from borrowings from the
Former Controlling Shareholders for the last financial year.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the Year, the Group mainly financed its operations and expansion
with its own working capital generated internally and borrowings from the
Current Controlling Shareholder (with principal amount of HK$37,026,000
as at 31 December 2020, which are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank and cash balances of
HK$19,969,000 (31 December 2019: HK$11,201,000). Gearing ratio
is calculated as the amount of interest- bearing borrowings divided by
total equity. The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2020 was N/A (31
December 2019: N/A).

The Group was in net current liabilities position of HK$57,137,000 as
at 31 December 2020. The Current Controlling Shareholder has agreed
to provide continuing financial support to the Company to enable it to
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due and to enable the Company
to continue its operations for the foreseeable future. Consequently, the
financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 24 January 2020,
(i) an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Shenzhen
Subsidiary”) and an independent third party (“Chengdu Partner”) entered
into an agreement (the “Chengdu Agreement”) pursuant to which
Shenzhen Subsidiary and Chengdu Partner will, among others, provide
capital in the amount of RMB21,000,000 to a company to be established
jointly by Shenzhen Subsidiary and Chengdu Partner in the PRC (the
“Chengdu JV”) according to their proportional interests (i.e. 51% and
49% respectively) in Chengdu JV after establishment (subject to the
terms and conditions of the Chengdu Agreement); and (ii) Shenzhen
Subsidiary and an independent third party (“Wuhan Partner”) entered into
an agreement (the “Wuhan Agreement”) pursuant to which Shenzhen
Subsidiary and Wuhan Partner will, among others, provide capital in the
amount of RMB20,900,000 to a company established jointly by Shenzhen
Subsidiary and Wuhan Partner in the PRC (the “Wuhan JV”) according
to their proportional interests (i.e. 51% and 49% respectively) in Wuhan
JV (subject to the terms and conditions of the Wuhan Agreement), for
the development of hotel accommodation business in Chengdu and
Wuhan, the PRC respectively. Pursuant to the Chengdu Agreement and
the Wuhan Agreement, Chengdu JV and Wuhan JV are accounted for as
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company.
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In addition, as disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 24
January 2020, 4 February 2020, 17 March 2020 and 23 March 2020
respectively, (i) pursuant to a tenancy agreement dated 24 January 2020
(as amended and supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated
17 March 2020, and subject to a transfer agreement dated 23 March
2020) (the “Chengdu Tenancy Agreement”), Chengdu JV shall lease a
property situated in Chengdu, the PRC (the “Chengdu Property”) for
a term of around 12 years from 23 March 2020 to 22 January 2032;
and (i) pursuant to a tenancy agreement dated 24 January 2020 (as
amended and supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated
17 March 2020) (the “Wuhan Tenancy Agreement”), Wuhan JV shall
lease a property situated in Wuhan, the PRC (the “Wuhan Property”)
for a term of 15 years from 23 July 2020 to 22 July 2035. The total
rentable areas of the Chengdu Property and the Wuhan Property are
approximately 7,600 sg.m and approximately 9,000 sg.m respectively.
The total rental payables under the Chengdu Tenancy Agreement and
the Wuhan Tenancy Agreement are approximately RMB65,110,000
(exclusive of property management fees, air-conditioning, other charges
and outgoings) and approximately RMB92,950,000 (inclusive of property
management fees but exclusive of air-conditioning, other charges and
outgoings) for the entire term respectively. Pursuant to HKFRS 16
“Leases”, the entering into of tenancy agreements as tenant will require
the Company to recognise a right-of-use asset. Therefore, the entering
into of the tenancy agreements as stated above were regarded as
acquisitions of assets by the Company under the Listing Rules. The value
of right-of-use assets recognised by the Company upon commencement
of lease term was (i) approximately RMB48,590,000 under the Chengdu
Tenancy Agreement; and (ii) approximately RMB63,240,000 under the
Wuhan Tenancy Agreement, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, there was no significant investments held,
or material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures by the Group during the Year, and the Company does not have
any future plan for material investments or capital assets as at the date of
this report.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

For the Year, the Group’s majority of the assets and liabilities, and
income and expenses were denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong
Dollar. The Group had no significant exposure to fluctuations in exchange
rates under foreign exchange contracts, interest, currency swaps or other
financial derivatives.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

For the Year, there was no material change to the capital structure of the
Group and information disclosed in the report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019. The total number of the issued shares of
the Company was 448,363,708 as at 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: 448,363,708 shares).

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend in respect of
the Year (2019: Nil).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at 27 February 2021,
being the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report
for the purpose of ascertaining information contained herein (the “Latest
Practicable Date”).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had 124 employees (31 December 2019: 84 employees) as at
31 December 2020. Remuneration is determined with reference to market
terms and performance, qualifications and experience of each individual
employee. Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance will be
paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their contributions.
Other benefits include contributions to retirement scheme.
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CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any charges on its
assets (31 December 2019: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had outstanding capital
commitments which were not provided for in the Group’s financial
statements, among which HK$12,002,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$32,000) commitments were contracted for.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(81 December 2019: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had issued or granted
any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights or exercised
any conversion or subscription rights under any convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights during the Year.

COMPLIANCE CONFIRMATION

The Board of Directors confirms that throughout the Year, the Group has
conformed in all material respects with all the requirements under relevant
statutes, rules, standards, codes, licences in respect of its operation,
financial reporting, or disclosures in Hong Kong or other applicable
jurisdictions.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
STAKEHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Group recognises and respects: (i) the importance of environmental
protection; (i) the lawful rights of stakeholders, broadly to be categorised
as employees, customers, suppliers, members of communities, and (iii)
corporate social responsibilities of the Group as a member of the society.
A specific report on these issues is covered in the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” of this Annual Report.
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The following set forth the biographical details of the Directors and the
members of the senior management of the Company as at the Latest
Practicable Date.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Chen Wu

Mr. Chen Wu (“Mr. Chen”), aged 54, was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from
20 March 2020. Mr. Chen graduated with a bachelor degree in applied
mathematics from Huazhong Polytechnic University (Z£FF F2 T A £2) (formerly
known as Huazhong College of Engineering (% /1 T £ f7)) in 1987 and
graduated from the postgraduate programme in economics management
engineering from Huazhong Polytechnic University (AR IE T KZ2) in 1989.
After graduation, Mr. Chen worked for Agricultural Bank of China
from July 1989 to September 2016. He successively held positions
as the Deputy General Manager of International Business Department
and Offshore Business Department in Shenzhen Branch, the General
Manager of Institutional Business Department in Shenzhen Branch and
the President of Branch in Shenzhen Nanshan District of Agricultural
Bank of China. Mr. Chen has been the Vice-president and the General
Manager of Treasury Department of Shenzhen Hazens Real Estate Group
Company Limited from September 2016 to February 2020.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND COMPANY
SECRETARY

Chung Tin Yan

Mr. Chung Tin Yan (“Mr. Chung”), aged 37, was appointed as an
executive Director and the chief financial officer of the Company with
effect from 31 December 2019 and was appointed as the financial
controller and the company secretary of the Company on February 2017.
Mr. Chung graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
a degree of bachelor of arts in accountancy in 2005. He has over 15
years of experience in finance, mergers and acquisitions, internal control,
auditing and accounting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chung held
various senior positions in the management team of the Chief Operating
Officer with Hutchison Telecommunications Hong Kong Holdings Limited
(stock code: 0215). He has also worked as an audit manager at Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu. Mr. Chung also has extensive experience in corporate
finance and fund raising activities in Hong Kong and in the United States.
He is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Yuan Fuer

Mr. Yuan Fuer (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 58, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 August 2018
and the Chairman of the Group with effect from 6 September 2018. Mr.
Yuan graduated from Jiangxi Public Medical School in medical studies.
Mr. Yuan, a businessman with over 18 years of experience in property
development and investment business in the PRC, founded Shenzhen
Hazens Real Estate Group Company Limited (“Shenzhen Hazens”) in
1996. Apart from property development and investment in the PRC,
Shenzhen Hazens expanded into other businesses including financial
business, medical business, and hotel and tourism business. Mr. Yuan is
the ultimate beneficial controlling shareholder of Shenzhen Hazens. Mr.
Yuan is also the sole director and the ultimate beneficial owner of Hehui
International Development Limited, the Current Controlling Shareholder.
Mr. Yuan is a brother-in-law of Mr. Hu Xinglong, a non-executive Director
of the Company.

Hu Xinglong

Mr. Hu Xinglong (“Mr. Hu”), aged 56, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 August 2018. Mr.
Hu holds a Master Degree in Business Administration from China Europe
International Business School. Mr. Hu is a brother-in-law of Mr. Yuan.
Mr. Hu has been the vice president of Shenzhen Hazens since October
2016, and the chairman and the general manager of Shenzhen Hazens
Property Service Company Limited from October 2016 to April 2017.
Furthermore, he had also served as an audit manager, finance manager
and chief accountant of FIYTA Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (SZSE Stock Code: 000026) from June 1997
to October 2016. Mr. Hu was certified as Certified Public Accountant by
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 1993 and Certified
Internal Auditor by the Institute of Internal Auditors in 1999.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Wu Jilin

Mr. Wu Jilin (“Mr. Wu”), aged 53, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 August 2018.
Mr. Wu holds a Master Degree in Accounting from Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics. Mr. Wu was an executive partner of Shenzhen
Lianchuang Lixin Certified Public Accountants since January 2005 and
is an adjunct professor of Accounting Faculty and a tutor of part-time
master students at Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics since
November 2015 and September 2016 respectively. He is a member of
the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors since 2013.

Du Hongwei

Mr. Du Hongwei (“Mr. Du”), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 15
August 2018. Mr. Du holds a Master Degree in Economics from Fudan
University. Mr. Du was the vice president, chief financial officer and joint
company secretary of Sunshine 100 China Holdings Ltd (Stock Code:
2608) from December 2013 to July 2016, January 2014 to March 2016
and June 2014 to March 2016, respectively. Mr. Du was the general
manager of Tianjin Yufeng Equity Investment Management Company
Limited from September 2009 to May 2012. Mr. Du was a director of
Sichuan Dikang Sci & Tech Pharmaceutical Industry Co., Ltd. (now
known as Sichuan Languang Development Co., Ltd.), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Shanghai Stock Exchange Stock
Code: 600466) from November 2007 to October 2008. Mr. Du was
and has been an independent non-executive director of Enviro Energy
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1102) from June 2019 to
October 2019 and again from June 2020 to present, respectively.
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Li Zhou

Ms. Li Zhou (“Ms. Li”), aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 August 2018.
Ms. Li holds a PhD Degree in Applied Economics from Xian Jiaotong
University. Ms. Li was certified as a certified hospitality educator from
America Hotel & Lodging Educational Institute in 2008 and a consultant
psychologist (Grade 2) by Occupational Skill Testing Authority of the
Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security in 2011. She was
an international visiting scholar of School of Business, the George
Washington University from 2009 to 2010 and a visiting scholar of the
University of Hawaii from 2016 to 2017. Ms. Li was qualified as a teacher
for higher education to teach management course by the Department
of Education of Guangdong province in 2003. Ms. Li was appointed as
Professor by Jinan University with effect from 1 October 2018.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Various businesses of the Group are respectively under the direct
responsibility of the Executive Directors, as hamed above.

Only the Executive Directors are regarded as members of the Group’s
senior management.
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The Company is committed to ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance in the interests of the shareholders and devotes considerable
effort to maintain high level of business ethics and corporate governance
practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) throughout the Year,
except for certain deviations as specified with considered reasons for
such deviations as explained below. The Board will keep reviewing and
updating such practices from time to time to ensure compliance with
legal and commercial standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies, monitoring
performance and managing risks of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”). At the same time, it also has the duty to
enhance the effectiveness of the corporate governance practices of the
Group. Under the Board, there are 3 board committees, namely the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee.
All these committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with their
respective terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain
functions of the senior management.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct for securities transactions
by the Directors and relevant employees who, because of their office
or employment, are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information in relation to the Company’s securities. The Company had
made specific enquiry to all the Directors and such relevant employees
and they had confirmed compliance with the Model Code throughout the
Year. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company during
the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Board comprises seven Directors as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Wu (Appointed with effect from 20 March 2020)
Mr. Chung Tin Yan

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Fuer (Chairman)
Mr. Hu Xinglong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Jilin
Mr. Du Hongwei
Ms. Li Zhou

List of directors and their roles and functions are available on the
websites of Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). Biographical details of the Directors as at the Latest
Practicable Date are set out in the section of “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 21 to 24. Mr. Yuan Fuer, a
non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Company, is a brother-
in-law of Mr. Hu Xinglong, a non-executive Director of the Company.
Save for the aforementioned relationship, there are no family or other
material relationships among members of the Board.

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall
strategies and policies of the Company. Apart from the regular board
meetings of the Year, the Board also meets on other occasions when a
Board-level decision on a particular matter is required.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, management provided all
members of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail.
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Day-to-day operational responsibilities are specifically delegated by the
Board to the management under the leadership of the chief executive
officer. Major matters include implementation of the strategies and
decisions approved by the Board and the management assumes full
responsibility to the Board for operations of the Group.

According to code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, a notice of at least
14 days should be given for a regular board meeting to give all directors
an opportunity to attend. Due to the practical scheduling issues and with
no objections from any Director, a shorter reasonable notice was given to
the Directors for a number of regular meetings held in 2020.

Meanwhile, according to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code,
independent non-executive Directors and non-executive Directors
should attend general meetings. At the annual general meeting held on
22 May 2020, all the then independent non-executive Directors and the
then non-executive Directors were presented to enable the Board to
develop a balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders of the
Company.

The Company will arrange to furnish all Directors with appropriate
information on all general meetings and take all reasonable measures to
arrange the schedule that all Directors can attend the general meetings in
order to develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.

The Board will continue to review the corporate governance status of the
Company from time to time and make any necessary changes to comply
with the CG Code.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, audit &EZEREHZ_ TE+ZA=+—HLF
committee meetings, remuneration committee meetings, nomination F*ﬁfﬁﬁ%A/\% BZLZEEEE  FUE
committee meetings and general meetings during the year ended 31 E&&%  RELZEegzZRERS 2R
December 2020 is set out in the following table: SEERN T -
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of directors Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
2 EZ283 INZEgeE FMZEe8E REZE8EE € V-1
(attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/
total no. of total no. of total no. of total no. of total no. of
meetings held) ~ meetingsheld) ~ meetingsheld) ~ mestings held) ~ mestings held)
(HErg/  (LRRE/  (LERE/ ﬁﬁ?ﬁ}ﬂ%(/ (HRERE/
BOYRENY) RTLHRORY) BOLRAKNE) FOSHLARY) BILRERH)
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Chen Wu (Appointed with effect  FREE4(E-E=F4F 4/4 N/A i N/A i N/A i 11
from 20 March 2020) ZAZ+RERZA)
Mr. Chung Tin Yan BRTRAE 4/4 N/A T ER N/A T E N/A T ER 11
Non-executive Directors FEHTEE
Mr. Yuan Fuer (Chairman) RERAE(ER) 4/4 N/A i N/A R F N/A i 11
Mr. Hu Xinglong el e 4/4 N/A TER N/A @R N/A TE R 11
Independent Non-executive BUIHTEE
Directors
Mr. W Jiin REMEE 4/4 2/2 11 11 15
Mr. Du Hongwei HEBRE 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 11
Ms. Li Zhou FRRL 4/4 2/2 11 11 1/1
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All Directors were provided with details of agenda items for decisions
making with reasonable notice and invited to raise any matters in the
agenda of Board Meeting. Directors have access to the advice and
services of the company secretary who is responsible for ensuring that
the Board procedures are complied with and advising the Board on
compliance matters. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of the
Board committees are kept by the company secretary and are opened for
inspection as requested by the Directors. During the Year, the Board was
given sufficient time to review and approve minutes of Board meetings
and meetings of Board Committees. The Directors were also provided
with access to independent professional advice, where necessary, in
carrying out their obligations as the Directors of the Company, at the
expense of the Company. Directors who are considered to have conflict
of interests or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to
be discussed would not be counted in the quorum of meeting and would
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.

All Directors assume the responsibilities to the shareholders of the
Company for the well-being and success of the Company. They are
aware of their duties to act in good faith and in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting records so
as to enable the Directors to monitor the Company’s overall financial
position. The Board updates shareholders on the operations and financial
position of the Group through, interim and annual results announcements
as well as the publication of timely announcements of other matters as
prescribed by the relevant rules and regulations.

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors, at
least one of whom has appropriate financial management expertise, in
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, newly appointed
Directors shall hold office until the next following general meeting and
shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Company had
arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against
the Directors.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision of A.2.1. of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman
of the Company (the “Chairman”) and the chief executive officer of the
Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separated to ensure a clear division
between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to manage the Company’s
business. The separation ensures a balance of power and authority so
that power is not concentrated.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Chen Wu was the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group and Mr. Yuan Fuer was the Chairman of
the Group. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are segregated. The Chairman’s main role is to lead the Board in
discharging its powers and duties, while the Chief Executive Officer’s
main role is to lead the management of the Company for undertaking
all the responsibilities delegated by the Board and managing the overall
operation of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all the non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a specific term of three years but subject to termination in certain
circumstance as stipulated in the relevant service contracts.

ROTATION OF DIRECTORS

At each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time
being (if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one third) will retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every one year or three years. Any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of members after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting and any Director appointed as an addition to the existing
board shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties and
has adopted the written terms of reference on its corporate governance
functions. The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance
functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and

compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the

Directors; and

(v)  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Since 2020 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed
the corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of
reference.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity of
board members can be achieved through consideration of a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be made upon the merits and contributions that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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Implementation and monitoring

The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’s composition under
diversified perspectives, and monitored the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy annually.

As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition under diversified
perspectives was summarized as follows:

Board diversity
EzgfEaznt

i ARRTESEEMNA
Ko UBFEREFTEREZTIEBRAH

RAFREBEH  EEgEZE2ZnLERMNAE
Aotatian T

Designation* NED INED
vy
Gender Male F 1% Female %1%
MR
Age group 30-39
Fican|
Length of service (year) 0-1
ARASAEEA ()
;rqife%s%onal industry Property /&= it 7= [l D)L Financial 17

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Number of directors
HEBEAH

* ED: Executive Director
HITES

NED: Non-executive Director

JEMITESR

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved the
objectives of Board Diversity Policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee of the Board was set up on 22 June 2011
(the “Remuneration Committee”) to oversee the remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management. The terms of reference
is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and the senior management and determining
the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for ensuring that
no Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which will be determined with reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions. Members are provided with sufficient resources,
including but not limited to, the access to independent professional
advice, where necessary, in carrying out their obligations, at the expense
of the Company.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2020 for reviewing the remuneration package of the
Directors and the senior management, assessing performance of
Directors, approving the terms of Directors’ service contracts and making
recommendations to the Board as to the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members as at the date
of this report namely:

Mr. Du Hongwei (Chairman)

Mr. Wu Jilin

Ms. Li Zhou

All of the current members are independent non-executive Directors.

In addition, pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, an
analysis of annual remuneration payable to the members of the senior
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HK$NIl to HK$1,000,000 Z% 721,000,000 7T 6 6

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee of the
Board on 22 June 2011 (the “Nomination Committee”) for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of the Directors and
succession planning of the Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of the Directors, assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
reviewing the Board Diversity Policy. Members are provided with access
to independent professional advice, where necessary, in carrying their
obligations at the expense of the Company.
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For the policy of nomination of directors of the Company (the “Nomination
Policy”), the Nomination Committee of the Company shall first discuss
the nomination of candidates for new Directors, examine the qualification
of these candidates, and then recommend such candidates to the
Board. The Board shall determine whether the appointment of such
candidates should be proposed for election at the general meetings.
The major criteria considered by the Nomination Committee and the
Board are the candidates’ educational backgrounds, experience in the
industry, their proposed commitment to the Company and achieving the
goal of diversity of the Board. Regarding the nomination of independent
non-executive Directors, the Nomination Committee will also particularly
consider the independence of such candidates taking into account the
independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting. The members reviewed the current
composition of the Board and discussed about the Board structure to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Company pursuant to its
terms of reference (available on the websites of the Company the Stock
Exchange), the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company appointed one
executive Director namely Mr. Chen Wu. The Nomination Committee has
reviewed the appointed Director’s background, including but not limited
to independence, gender, age, cultural and education background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. The Nomination
Committee considered current Board composition has achieved the
objectives of the Board Diversity Policy.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Yuan
Fuer, Mr. Hu Xinglong and Ms. Lizhou shall retire and are eligible to offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of the
Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members as at the date of
this report namely:

Ms. Li Zhou (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Jilin

Mr. Du Hongwei
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All of the current members are independent non-executive Directors.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee of the Board on
22 June 2011 (the “Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference
(available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange) that
set out the authorities and duties of the Audit Committee adopted by the
Board. The Audit Committee performs, amongst others, the following
functions:

° reviewing the financial information of the Group;

o reviewing the relationship with and the terms of appointment of the
external auditors; and

° overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system.

The Audit Committee is given sufficient resources to oversee the internal
control system of the Group, reports to the Board on any material issues,
and makes recommendations to the Board. During the year under review,
the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s annual results and annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2019, and the interim results and
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2020, the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Group, the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems and processes, the effectiveness of Company’s
internal audit function and the re-appointment of the external auditors.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Audit Committee comprises three members as at the date of this
report namely:

Mr. Wu Jilin (Chairman)

Mr. Du Hongwei

Ms. Li Zhou

All the members are independent non-executive Directors. None of the

members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s
existing external auditors.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, maintaining sound systems of risk management and
internal controls and reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard interests
of the Group as a whole. However, such systems are designed to
manage the Group’s risks within an acceptable risk profile, rather than to
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives of the Group,
they can only provide reasonable assurance but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the significant risks faced by the Group. This process
includes enhancing the systems of risk management and internal
control in view of the changes to the business environment or regulatory
guidelines.

Management assists the Board in the implementation of the Group’s
policies, procedures and controls by identifying and assessing the
risks faced, and in the design, operation and monitoring of suitable
internal controls to mitigate and control these risks. The adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal controls
of the Group are annually reviewed by the Board. The review covers all
material controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
as well as the process for the identification, evaluation and management
of the significant risks faced by the Company and the Group. The Board
also reviews the adequacy of resources, employees’ qualifications
and experience, their training programs, and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions. The Board
has conducted and completed such review in respect of the year ended
31 December 2020 and considers the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group effective and adequate.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

For the purposes of handling and disseminating inside information
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Company has
in place a policy on handling and dissemination of inside information
(“Policy”) which sets out the procedures and internal controls for handling
and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner in such a way
SO as not to place any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow
time for the market to price the listed securities of the Company with the
latest available information. This Policy also provides guidelines to staff of
the Company to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the Company
from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It also includes
appropriate internal control and reporting systems to identify and assess
potential inside information. Dissemination of inside information of the
Company shall be conducted by publishing the relevant information on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company on their reporting
responsibilities and opinion on the Group’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could
lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has incurred an
aggregate fee of approximately HK$1,140,000 to the external auditor and
its affiliate. Among such fee, the amount of approximately HK$900,000
was paid for the final audit purposes including interim review and other
review engagements and approximately HK$240,000 was paid to its
affiliate for non-audit purposes. The non-audit services mainly consist
of consulting services in relation to the environmental, social and
governance reporting, risk assessment and review on financing reporting
procedures and internal control system, as well as due diligence work
over new projects.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view. In
preparing the financial statements, appropriate accounting policies and
standards are selected and applied consistently.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and facilitating communications among the
Directors as well as with shareholders and management.

During 2020, Mr. Chung Tin Yan has attended relevant professional
training to update his skills and knowledge. He met the training
requirements as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is
a key to enhance investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open
and timely disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and the
public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual and interim
reports.

The website of the Company (www.legend-strategy.com) has provided
an effective communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

The Company has not made any change to its constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2020. A consolidated version of
the Company’s constitutional documents is available on the Company’s
website and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director receives a formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has continuously provided relevant training materials to the
Directors. Directors participated in continuous development relating to
their roles, functions and duties of a listed company director or further
enhancement of their professional development by the way of attending
training courses or reading relevant materials. All Directors had provided
the Company their training records for the year under review. The
Directors and officers are indemnified under a Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in discharge
of their duties while holding office as the Directors and officers of the
Company. The Directors and officers shall not be indemnified where there
is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust proven against them.
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DIVIDEND AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group did not declare nor pay any dividends to shareholders of the
Group during the Year.

The payment and the amount of any dividends, if paid, will depend on
the results of operations, cash flows, financial condition, statutory and
regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends by the Group, future
prospects and other factors that the Directors may consider relevant.
Holders of the shares will be entitled to receive such dividends pro rata
according to the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the shares.
The declaration of payment and amount of dividends will be subject to
the Directors’ discretion.

Dividends may be paid only out of the Group’s distributable profits as
permitted under the relevant laws. To the extent profits are distributed
as dividends, such portion of profits will not be able to be reinvested in
the Group’s operations. There can be no assurance that the Directors
will be able to declare or distribute any dividend in the amount set out
in any plan of the Board or at all. The dividend distribution record in the
past may not be used as a reference or basis to determine the level of
dividends that may be declared or paid by the Group in the future.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The Company has adopted a shareholders communication policy with
objectives to provide our shareholders with detailed information about
the Company so that they can exercise their rights as shareholders
in an informed manner. The Company would review the shareholders
communication policy on a regular basis.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives, including
annual general meeting, annual report, various notices, announcements
and circulars. Procedures for demanding a poll have been included in
circulars accompanying notice convening a general meeting and such
procedures have been read out by the chairman of the general meeting.
The annual general meeting and other general meetings of the Company
are primary forum for communication between the Company and its
shareholders. The Company shall provide shareholders with relevant
information on the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely
manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The information provided
shall be reasonably necessary to enable shareholders to make an
informed decision on the proposed resolution(s). At the annual general
meeting held on 22 May 2020 (the “2020 AGM”), a separate resolution
was proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of the Directors.
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At the 2020 AGM, the executive Directors, the chairmen of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees and representatives from
the auditor of the Company, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, were
present for questions from shareholders. There was one general meeting
held during the year ended 31 December 2020.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2012
Revision). However, shareholders are requested to follow article 58 of
the Articles of Association of the Company, general meetings shall be
convened on the written requisition of any one or more members holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the secretary to the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
Director of the Company are laid down under article 85 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. No person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be eligible
for election to the office of Director at any general meeting unless a
notice in writing of the intention to propose such person for election as a
Director, signed by a shareholder (other than the person to be proposed
for election as a Director) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting
for which such notice is given, and a notice in writing signed by such
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
head office or at the registration office. The minimum length of the period
during which such notices are given shall be at least seven (7) days and
the period for lodgment of such notices shall commence no earlier than
the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of
such general meeting. Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director are available on the Company’s website.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSAL

If a shareholder wishes to make any proposal at any general meeting
of the Company, the shareholder should deposit a written notice of
the proposal to the company secretary of the Company within 7 days
commencing from the date of the notice of the general meeting of the
Company (or such other period as may be determined and announced
by the Director from time to time).

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of the company secretary, by email: info@Isih.com.hk, or mail
to Suite 1702, 17/F, World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules
and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of
the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate,
truthful and complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well as
the public to make rational and informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure an
effective distribution of the resources and shareholders’ interests. The
senior management will continue endeavors in maintaining, enhancing
and increasing the Group’s corporate governance level and quality.

®
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI HERERBRSE

PRINCIPLES

The Group hereby presents this Environmental, Social and Governance
report (“ESG report”) for the year ended 31 December 2020, in order
to comply with the requirements set forth in Environmental, Social and
Governance (the “ESG”) Reporting Guide of the Listing Rules. This
covers the environmental and social performance of the core business
of the Group in the PRC during the period from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020 (the “Year”).

The Board is responsible for the ESG strategy and reporting including
evaluating and determining the ESG-related risks and ensuring that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems are in place. We have engaged Zhonghui Anda Risk Services
Limited to identify relevant ESG issues and to assess their materiality to
the business as well as the stakeholders, through reviewing the Group’s
operations and holding internal discussions. The management has
provided a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of the ESG
risk management and internal control systems. Pursuant to the general
disclosure requirements of the ESG Guide, disclosures relating to the
material ESG issues identified have been included in this ESG Report
which aims to provide a balanced representation of the Group’s ESG
performance in the environmental and social areas, and covers the
Group’s operations.

This report comprises the review of ESG areas, which sets out the
Group’s policies and practices as well as certain major subsidiaries of
the Company’s policies and practices in respect of three environmental
aspects and eight social aspects in accordance with ESG Reporting
Guide of the Listing Rules for the Year. This report is designed to allow
the Company’s stakeholders, such as shareholders, governments
and regulatory bodies, employees, customers, suppliers and society
and the public to have comprehensive understanding of the long-term
sustainability information of the Group. The Group seeks to balance
the views and interests of these stakeholders through constructive
conversation with a view to set the course for long term prosperity.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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JR A

BHEEEMRAIRE g kER(RE 1T
GRERDMEESIMENRT - NEBRZL
2IEE_ZT_EF+-_A=t+—HLEFEZ
RIRE - g hERMRE([IRE - e kER
WE]D c ABEREAEEANR T _FF—A
—HEZZ-TF+ A=+ —HBHEBE(EAF
EDRPBZLEFRIRBERAERI -

EETEERMIEER g REAREK®R
CBEEREERE tgREGERER
CWHEREREEEREMNERE A8

E/DHE BEENANBETERLS - HMEREF

ELERRERBRARBBRIASENS

B R ERTNERRT R 0 A RIMERIIRE ek

ERFEAMTEBEASEHRMOESRFD

EHEZN - BEECHIRE dgkERE

g IR R NEPEEIE R Y E’Jﬁxﬁ\iﬁi?Af/ﬁﬂj

R o IRIBIRE - L2 RERESIN—RIFE
BT BECHEMNERRE H2REREE

MRBRECHARRE @ NEARE -
SENFERNRAZIREEZEFNERE -
HEREBRZRR -

AHEBEHRE - HENEAREMNER
HASHTAFEAEEUARKLETEFR
A R EWRARE g RERESIT - B
P =1{ERFE 77 B\ B+ & 77 T & BR M R
& AREEEBARANFMNE - IRR
BEMEERE BB TP fER
BRAREETHRASENRBITHERRE
B o AEBENFRBERMEL FEFEELRD
EHBRNANGE  URAKENRPERET
% ?Vﬂ °



\ 4

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiE HERERHKS

The Group is principally engaged in accommodation operations and
provision of accommodation consultations and accommodation facilities
management services and other related businesses. For the Year, the
Group operates three leased-and-operated hotels, the three branches are
located at Nanshan District (the “Nanshan Branch”) and Baoan District
(the “Baoan Branch”) in Shenzhen as well as in Huizhou (the “Huizhou
Branch”) of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) respectively
(collectively, the “Three Branches”). The Three Branches have 420 rooms
in total. In addition, certain green renovations of the Three Branches have
been completed in the Year in order to attract more guests and boost the
revenue of the Group.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder engagement plays a core role in the sustainability of the
Group. The Group fully appreciates the needs to build both online
and offline communication channels and to provide stakeholders with
timely reports on strategic planning and performance of the Group in
order to establish a continuing communication mechanism with the
stakeholders. In addition, the Group consults the stakeholders on their
recommendations and propositions to ensure its business practices can
meet the expectations of the stakeholders.

The stakeholders include the shareholders, governments and regulatory
bodies, employees, customers, suppliers and society and the public. The
Group discusses with the stakeholders through various channels for their
expectations and relevant feedback of the Group as below:

AEETENFEEFELE  REEEREERE
RS RAETE AR RIS FREES - RAFE
AEEKLE-—MEELEHE - E=MBED
BRI EE AR KB ([ E D) RYITE L&
(MFALEDEEZR([ERE ) IA R EMN
m(TEMNE D sl =MEE ) - E=FAE/E
HEA20EEFE » I AFEAREED X
=RBEENE THRERE  ARSIEZTAR
A EE Y -

O ESHE

RPE2RERKENTFHERRDESZL
AL - AEERAFTEEZR MR TERR
B WkERFDERMERASEBE RS
RERBORE - BARRFNEZ RIS EE
il o tesh - AEE AR D E R ER KR
NHEREEXBERNERFNEZRE -

BHERERR BEREEHE B8 ¥
B HEEUARLERAR - ALEBEHRZE
REEFBHETHENE  MALENHEBER
T

Stakeholder Expectations Communication and feedback
BHE e BRENNE

Shareholders ° Financial results ° Improving profitability

R iR wEAMEN

° ESG performance
RE - g kERRHE

° Corporate transparency
PEFERE

° Sound risk control
TENERZES

° Monitoring use of resources
ERIERGER

o Regular information disclosures
EHMEBHEE

° Optimising risk management and internal
control

BCR R E IR R A ER
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RIE - #HERERBE

Stakeholder
B0E

Expectations

HE

Communication and feedback

BERKER

Governments and
regulatory bodies
BT R BEE s

Employees

B8

Customers
®P

Suppliers
HrEn

° Compliance with laws and regulations
BPED AR

° Tax payment in accordance with laws
HOEMTR

o Compliance with environmental
regulations
BTRITRD

o Career development platform
BEZERYA

° Salary and benefits
e kil

° Occupational health and safety
BERERLZE

° Service quality
ARHG K%

o Customer information security
BERERLZE

o Customer rights and interests
protection
B EmiRE

o Business ethics and credibility
BXBRELER
° Integrity cooperation

HIEETE

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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° Compliance operation

BRLE

° Tax payment in full and on time
L B RRATE

o Compliance of environmental policies
BTIRBERGR

° Transparent promotion mechanism
BT

o Competitive salary and employee benefits
BB heEe LESRA

° Providing trainings for employees and
strengthen their safety awareness
RH{ESEIIRINGAR 2 E S

° Monitoring the customers’ satisfaction
level through enquiry and questionnaire
NERARBSEAENTEREE

o Customer privacy protection
B PLRERE

° Complaint handling mechanism

FRIR R

o Performing the contracts according to law
HOERBL

o Building a responsible supply chain
B BRANHERE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiE HERERHKS

Stakeholder Expectations Communication and feedback
BHE HE BRERKE
Society and the public ° Environmental protection o Putting into use environmental protections
HERAR IRIEIRE and energy saving equipments
e Employment opportunities HEIRIR BN BE AR A1 A
MERE e Providing equal opportunities for all

o Caring company and social
responsibility
MIE TNt gaE T

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In the Year 2020, the Group conducted a comprehensive materiality
assessment, which involved group discussions, interviews and a survey
with internal and external stakeholders to identify “material issues” and
reflect the environmental, social and operational issues which have the
most significant impacts on the Company’s business and the relevant
issues which are of concern to the stakeholders.

With reference to the scope of disclosure as required under the ESG
Reporting Guide, as well as taking into consideration its business
features, the Group has identified and determined 22 issues covering
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emission, energy consumption, employee
welfare, occupational health and safety, training and development, supply
chain management, customer privacy, anti-corruption, and community
investment with respect to its business operation.

employees
REMBEEIATHE
° Community investment

HERA
BRI

RoZoTE  AREETRAOE BN
i HRMBH « BHRRENBRIBE
EEATOEE - LABRI AR RRBR YA
AFEBRFHEMINANETAEAYE
MBS R EERE -

R2ERE - G NERREESIIRENR
BRENAMEEEERHEHN  AEEEHEE
BaERRLET22REMAERE(NAER
BN - BERER - BEREAN - BERER
Ze  HIIRER - HEREE  TPLE -
RESERMHBIRESEH -
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RIE - #HERERBE

Materiality of Environmental, Social and Governance Issues

RE  HERELABENEAM

High
"%—
10

) 9 1819
3 20 22
248 21m
O
Sy 7 16m 17m
2]
2N 6 14115
= me
£Z 5 1112
g
i) 13m
s8¢
3 i 3 1m8 2m9 7m
o
&M 2
3 5
5 1 3m 10 Om Am
= High
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Relevance/Materiality to business
HEBHRE EE1T

Environmental aspects Social aspects Operational aspects
RIBEFE HEFE EERE
1. GHG emissions 9.  Local community engagement 17.  Economic value generated
1. RERBHN 9. EHiELH 17. FIESA®KEEE
2. Energy consumption 10.  Community investment 18. Corporate governance
2. BEREFE 10. HEHRE 18. 1EEAR
3. Water consumption 11.  Occupational health and safety 19.  Anti-corruption
3. #K 1. BERREEZSE 19. REF
4.  Waste 12.  Labour standards in supply chain  20.  Supply chain management
4. BEEY) 12, HERSTRE 20. fHrEEER
5. Environmental impact of operation 13. Training and development 21. Customer satisfaction
5 ZEENREXE 13. ElRER 21, BPWEE
6. Use of natural resources and 14.  Employee welfare 22. Customer privacy

packaging material 14, EEEH 22, BFEALE
6. (FABARERKBEDE 15.  Inclusion and equal opportunities
7. Customer engagement in 15. HEkTEHs

environmental issues 16. Talent attraction and retention
7. BPZHRIFREE 16. W RIEEB AT
8. Use of chemicals

8. f[FALER

48 Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiE HERERHKS

EMISSIONS

As stated above, the Group is principally engaged in accommodation
operations and provision of accommodation consultations and
accommodation facilities management services and other related
businesses. Hence, the emissions relating to air, greenhouse gases
emissions and discharge into the water and land, as well as generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste are minimal in the Year.

During the Year, the major greenhouse gases emissions of the Three
Branches were the greenhouse gases generated by the electricity
consumption and the waste paper disposal at landfills. In order to
minimise the energy consumption and waste paper of the Three
Branches, various sustainable development measures have been
enforced to address environmental responsibilities within normal
operating procedures, including but not limited to (i) compact fluorescent
lamp were installed as many as possible in the Three Branches for the
Year; (i) switch on and off sensors were installed in the corridors; (iii)
staff were encouraged to switch off the electronic devices, lights and air-
conditioners after the use of a room or leaving office for a period of time
such as lunch hour; (vi) air-conditioners with low efficiency or malfunction
were replaced in the Year; (v) refrigerators were kept away from sunlight;
and (vi) staff were encouraged to print only when necessary and use
recycle papers in first priority for printing so far as practicable.

Other air pollutants include nitrogen oxides (“NO,”), sulphur oxides (“SO,”)
and particulate matter (“PM”), which have adverse effects on climate,
ecosystems, air quality, habitats, agriculture, and human and animal
health. The Group generates other air pollutants through the use of its
motor vehicles.

2958

AN EXFR  AEBEEBRRFEEFEE - 12
HIEBEFB AR EBREEEREFHEBES -
RUtAAFEA BERZERIENY - RERE
BER - KR EHHBESARELEENES
&Y °

RAFEE  ZRBEENEIEREREERKR
BEHRMERERERENER - RRERL =
EEEMRERE R ER - AEESREET
ARERRER  ERBEEBRETAERE
B BREFRRORAFER =FBEES
FIRE LB EBRERE (i) 7A A IS 20 5 ) B R B 2% (i)
s BB T RERE RN A E—RERE
(FERR)KEAFAEFRE  BRNEZER
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RIE - #HERERBE

Gaseous Emissions from the Use of Motor Vehicles

ERREELAREIER

Indicator Unit 2020 2019
BE B —ERIERF —E-NF
NO, Kilogram (“Kg”)
Ek=tle) NN 2.70 0.99
SO, Kg
=kl NI 0.06 0.02
PM Kg
SRF KL NI 0.20 0.07
GHG emissions (Scope 1) Kilogram of Carbon dioxide equivalent
BER R (RE) (“Kg of CO,e”)

—SlemarEE((Zs/mATEE] 11,492 4,222
GHG emissions (Scope 2)* Kg of COe
= RS HE R (E5[E2) k= /NS s 600,153 941,597
GHG emissions (Scope 3)* Kg of CO.e
BEREBEN (EE3) ZEERATER 35,981 44,604
Total Kg of COe
CkG] k= /NS s 647,626 990,423
Hotel gross floor area Square meter (“M?”)
BEEEEE IR FERAKD 20,645 35,956
GHG intensity Kg of CO,e/M?
AERERE —E(emATEE K 31.4 27.5
* The emission factor of electricity consumed is sourced from the China ~ * ZE-NFREENNPREA T REF EE

FEE - BEDREREBREBERERE
5l 5T E - KV BIBIE—BALLERAR -

Southern Power Grid in 2019. The figures are calculated in accordance with
the “Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”. The figures are restated
for consistent comparison purpose.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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RiE HERERHKS

Environmental performance from operations EEELNRERE

Indicator Unit 2020 2019
BE B —EBCEF —E-NF
Hazardous waste produced Ton

BEBYEE 7 N/A i A N/A N
Intensity Ton/M?

B WA, F5 oK N/A 7R i FA N/A 73 F
Non-hazardous waste produced Ton

FEBEEMEE WA 10.3 22,5
Intensity Ton/M?

B Mg, 77K 0.0005 0.001
No hazardous waste are generated from the accommodation operations ~ #EABELE « B FBSRHAREBERESE

and provision of accommodation consultations and accommodation
facilities management services and other related businesses. Non-
hazardous wastes generated from the operations in the Three Branches
are mainly office and hotel room consumables. The hotel staff has
promoted separation of waste such as cartons and plastic bottles, which
are placed in certain areas assigned to recycled suppliers for collection.
For the hotel consumables such as cans and used plastic bottles of
water, the building management offices of landlords have separated them
from other waste for recycling purposes.

The COVID-19 pandemic has influenced the overall economy of
accommodation operations. Due to decrease in customers and
discontinued operations of Luohu Branch and one of the two blocks of
buildings of Huizhou Branch, the volume of non-hazardous waste has
also decreased significantly.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC and other applicable laws and regulations
that has an impact relating to air and greenhouse gases emissions,
discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste of the Group in the Year.

No fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations had been reported in the Year.

ARIGSEEESL MEL T BEEEY - =M
B EEENEEENEERNAERBE
HEHERER - BEE THTEMHE - 4K
MRERBFERESE TEREENNETE
LAE R - gt SRR E RRAKEBEIRS
BEBEMME @ ZXEFEERERDHETT
HEELAERIWAER -

COVID- 19 BEF BT BEEBNBBLES
o R BURIR A DA R 28 5 S K BN B RS
FrRIEEEER - EBEEMEBENAE
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RiE HERERHKS

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group is committed to minimising the impact of business activities
on the environment and supporting environmental protection programs.
In particular, a number of initiatives, which are designed to conserve
resources, were introduced to promote employee awareness of the need
to achieve efficient utilisation of resources.

As mentioned in the above “Emissions” section, the Group has a series of
policies and procedures to minimise the electricity used by the employees
in the Three Branches. In order to increase the electricity consumption
efficiency, a number of new light-emitting diodes (“LED”) lightings were
installed in 2019. Other than above, solar water heaters and heat pumps
have been installed in Nanshan Branch to generate daily hot water supply
in order to reduce gas or electricity consumption. In addition, shower
sprinklers with low water pressure were installed in all bathrooms of the
Three Branches to reduce water consumption and water intensity.

BERER

AEBHNRELHEDHBEOLE - AR
SRBHREIED - LHRREE S ED DR
M REBTHRSANFBERNE
o

AN B[ Bey) | — Pt - REER=FDE
ERABZHEBEREFURDEERESE - B
REAEME RS- NFRETEL R
& (TLED ) BRAF « B L LASL - FILLIETRE %
RKARBGRERVKE REVKR » DA B B AUk H
& R AR RE SRR o thsh - RAITRE
RE=FEEN 288 E R REBEKEMNAEE
5B RBURADIKFERKEE -

Relevant Consumptions from Operation EEEAXNHEHBEE

Indicator Unit 2020 2019
it B gt %22 —E-NF
Energy Consumption

BEIRURFE

Electricity consumption kWh

BHEMAE F RS 1,179,430 1,850,441
Electricity consumption intensity KWh/M?

BHERRTE FRE,FHAK 57.1 51.5
Water Consumption

k¥

Water consumption Cubic metre (“M*”)

IKFE SRR AK]) 76,365 86,384
Water consumption intensity Ms/M?

KERE SRR 3.7 2.4

As the Group is principally engaged in accommodation operations and
provision of accommodation consultations and accommodation facilities
management services and other related businesses, no packaging
material was used in the Year.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiE HERERHKS

Regarding the accommodation operations, the Group closely monitors
the level of energy consumption and greenhouse gases emissions of
its Branches. Every year, the Three Branches are required to set their
respective energy and carbon reduction targets, and come up with
feasible measures to achieve them. The details and results achieved are
listed as follows:

RAREERELEMS @ AEETYEREG
JE Y BETREAE FUR ERBEBERUKT - =RDEE
BEYAR] L KREFS BRI BT
WHIERAITHRBAEXBR - FTEENFRR
RERESIAT

Projects Details and results achieved

EHA FFEZENFRRER

LED and compact fluorescent lamps In 2019, LED lightings have been installed in Baoan Branch during
LED M AR E s renovation. For Nanshan Branch and Huizhou Branch, a number of compact

fluorescent lamps have been installed, which have saved up much electricity
as compared with incandescent light lamp.

RZZ—NF  BLEEEHHEDZELEDRA - ZREILERBMNE - &
BERARBEORLE B IFREBEHEELZE S -

Shower heads Using water savings shower heads in the bathroom of the Three Branches,
TEBER consumption of water is saved after installation.
R=EVEEAEFEREKICESE - RREEREEERK -

Solar water heaters and heat pumps Solar water heaters and heat pumps have been installed in Nanshan Branch
KFZeEHUKEE R ERR to generate daily hot water supply in order to reduce gas or electricity
consumption. The consumption of electricity is saved in the Nanshan Branch

for water heating.

EREILERERGREAKERERREES BHEKHE - URDF
TERE o ISR ENE BUKHtE R mTREA AR A8

Air-conditioners In 2019, a number of new air-conditioners have been upgrading from old air-
= conditioners for the renovation of Bacan Branch. The relevant consumption
of electricity would be reduced. Moreover, energy saving signs are displayed
to remind hotel staff to turn off air-conditioners after use to promote energy

saving.

R-Z—NF BREREHRHE  CHETEZBNRENZR - HEED
HREREIRIERY - BE - SERREREERA L REEEE TMERZ

KR L - LARRKIBEIR -

Non-Hazardous Waste Non-hazardous waste from the Three Branches include packaging materials

IEEEED of hotel guest supplies, paper for office use and kitchen waste from
restaurants of hotels. The hotels made their best effort to minimising the
impact on the environment by using biodegradable material for packaging
materials of hotel guest supplies. The Three Branches promoted separation
of waste such as cartons and plastic bottles, which are placed in certain
areas assigned to recycled suppliers for collection.
=HEENEEEDREREETRMEEDH HAETRAEELR
BIERREY) o BEEBEEEEAm BRI AR £ YRR YE - KR
RIBPE - —RBEHBEY (AR KRERBIR) D1 - MER DK T el

FEREVE T RS E U -
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RiE HERERHKS

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group always raise energy-saving awareness among the staff of the
Three Branches, reminding them to switch off all lighting and electronic
devices after use. On the other hand, hotel guests are encouraged
energy reduction by providing energy-saving tips in hotel lobbies and
written reminders in guest rooms.

The impact on the environment and natural resources from the
accommodation operations of the Group in PRC is minimal in the Year.

EMPLOYMENT

The Group places a significant emphasis on developing human capital
and provides competitive remuneration and welfare packages. Promotion
opportunities and salary adjustments are benchmarked against individual
performance. Employees are entitled to benefits such as annual leave,
sick leave, maternity leave, marriage leave, funeral leave and medical
coverage in accordance with local regulations.

Distribution of work force classified by difference catalogues as follows:

BERRRER

AEBETRA=MEES THEAENERE - 17
BETIMERRBEAMBELNRETERE - 5=
—J7H - EBROBEE R Z R E AL R R NE
[EEEREEESHERET - SEBEEEEEHL0
BER

REE - AEERTENEBLESNRERA
RERERNF EE RS -

"

AEEREERERANEALREAZS
MFMRENES  BeREETEARRR
HEFWERELFERE - BETREEH
EHREBER AR ER - BR - BBUAK
BERREZREEHN -

R RERIS B ET H ST

Social Performance Unit 2020 2019
HERR By —EZEF —E-hF
By Gender

RUERIE S

Male People

B A 15 (37%) 25 (36%)
Female People

g A 26 (63%) 45 (64%)
Total People

st A 41 (100%) 70 (100%)

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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RiE HERERHKS

Social Performance Unit 2020 2019
HERE B —EC-SF —Z-hE
By Age Group

RERARE D

Under 30 years old People

30 AR A 17 (41%) 29 (41%)
30-50 years old People

30&505% A 20 (49%) 35 (50%)
Over 50 years old People

508 A A 4 (10%) 6 (9%)
Total People

st A 41 (100%) 70 (100%)
By Employment Categories

RHEER

Senior level People

=R A 3 (7%) 3 (4%)
Middle level People

R A 7 (17%) 17 (24%)
Entry level People

AP A 31 (76%) 50 (72%)
Total People

st A 41 (100%) 70 (100%)

The Group places emphasis on equal opportunities for all personnel in
respect of hiring, pay rates, training and development, promotion and
other terms of employment. The Group is committed to providing a
working environment which is free from any form of discrimination on the
basis of ethnicity, gender, religion, age, disability or sexual orientation.

The Group has a wide diversity of cultures including the employees
with different genders, ages, skills, educational backgrounds, industry
experiences and other qualifications in order to achieve the most suitable
composition and balance.

AEBIEERE - HMLE - Bl RER
BRAREMREFB I AAZERERITE
Wil o REBENREE B FERER - &
A R FER  RARMERAF AR A
TR -

AEBERBZT  BETRMR - Fik
REE - HEER  TEERIEMEERNE
T WRUDEBRER ZERMTE -
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RiE HERERHKS

The Group has enhanced its employee handbook with effect from
January 2015 which is applicable for the Three Branches. Such employee
handbook is developed in accordance with the Labour Law of PRC and
has been distributed to all employees since they commence working for
the Group.

The remuneration and position of the employees of the accommodation
operations will be adjusted which are based on the results of evaluation
of individual working performance and efficiency. Staff bonus is based on
the performance appraisal and operating results.

Treatment of employee’s misconduct must be fair and reasonable in all
of the circumstances. Misconduct may lead to a warning and even a
dismissal. Any acts of misconduct are to be reported to the human and
administration department. In the Year, no incident of serious misconduct
was identified.

Employees’ wages, overtime payments and related benefits are made
not less than the local government’s minimum requirements. The normal
working hours for general employees are normally 8 hours a day and 40
hours a week. Integrated computation of working hours is implemented
with reference to the requirements of the Labour Law of the PRC.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the Labour
Law of the PRC, Labour Contract Law of the PRC, Payment of Wages
Tentative Provisions and other applicable laws and regulations that has
a significant impact relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare on the Group in the
Year.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions
had been reported in the Year.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiE HERERHKS

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group adopts non-discriminatory employment practices and
provides a healthy and safe workplace. All employees are strictly required
to follow the operating procedures, which include but not limited to (i)
pay attention to whether there is a dangerous work situation, if found,
should immediately report to the supervisor; (ii) use both hands to
handle the carts; (i) use a ladder or chair to take items from a height
or ask colleagues for help; (iv) wipe out the slippery or oily working
areas immediately in order to prevent slipping; (v) do not use damaged
machines or appliances to avoid accidents; (vi) maintain a variety of tools
and safety equipment; and (vii) strictly enforce the industry norms and
professional operation.

Smoking is prohibited in all indoor areas of the Three Branches. First aid,
fire extinguishing, evacuation, leakage and escape exercises are regularly
performed. Two fire drills were conducted in the Year for the Three
Branches.

For electrical works, the Three Branches have employed electrical
technicians who have valid licences granted by relevant government
officials.

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020, the Group has adopted a
series of measures to protect the health of employees, which include not
limited to (i) each of the employees and guests is required to wear a mask
at all times in the hotel, disposable masks are provided to employees
every day; (ii) guests are only able to check in when they have a valid
health QR code; (iii) public areas of the hotel such as elevators and lobby
are sterilised at least 3 times a day; and (iv) hand sanitizers are provided
to all guests in the hotel.

In addition, in order to respond to emergencies and improve first-aid skills
of the employees, the Group had provided first-aid training courses to its
employees.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Law of the PRC on Work Safety, Regulations on Work-Related Injury
Insurance of the PRC and other applicable laws and regulations that has
a significant impact on the Group relating to provide a safety working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards in the
Year.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions
had been reported in the Year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiE HERERHKS

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group has been committed to providing on-the-job training of
its employees in order to enhance their knowledge and skills. All
employees are encouraged to enhance their skills and knowledge at
every opportunity in order to perform their current job more efficiently
and effectively and to be better prepared for career opportunities which
may arise. During the Year, quarterly training courses were provided to
the employees including but not limited to customer check-in and check-
out procedures, room services techniques, disinfection techniques for
hotel rooms, fire safety, handling customers’ complaint, handling of items
left by customers and so on. The employees participated actively in the
training courses. For certain external training courses recommended
by the Group, such fees of training course are borne by the Group in
accordance with the specific guidelines of reimbursement stated in the
employee handbook.

For recreation activities, the Group often organises a variety of
physical and mental health or sports activities, such as various sports
competitions, outdoor picnic and employees’ birthday party.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group fully understands that the exploitation of child and forced
labour are universally condemned, and therefore take the responsibility
against child and forced labour very seriously. The Group complies with
all laws and regulations against child labour and forced labour strictly for
the Three Branches.

For entry registration, all employees must present valid documents and
copies to the Group as follows: (i) identity card, academic proof such
as diploma or degree certificate, title certificate, vocational qualification
certificate, English grade certificate; (i) social security card; (i) medical or
health certificate; (iv) recent photos; and (v) other relevant information and
documents required by the Group. The above procedures can ensure no
child labour will be employed in the accommodation operations.

All Employees are entitled to have sick leave, injury leave and maternity
leave with medical proof in accordance with the Labour Law of the
PRC. In addition, all employees work normally 8 hours daily and are
not encouraged to work overtime. But if overtime work is required, the
relevant employees and superior will agree mutually in written form. The
compensation for overtime work is in accordance with the provisions of
Labour Law of the PRC.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRREBZERERA A

R R

AEEFERELSEREBRHEREY - URESK
EHHBNRGEE - AEESBAERENES
— (AR A R HE - UE S RAITE R
FITAE - R EFRDRBERS - RAF
B AEERERERHEFERZIRE £
BRETRREFPAEMEERF - BERS
I3 BERREESEN  BhTE P&
FERIE - RRPERYREES - EEEGS2H
FAIEREE - BRAAKERZZENE TIMNBFIIR
1B ZFEIRIENE R AKEREESR
F R Pty B B E FE SR E -

REEFTHTH - AREERARSERS MER
EENEBE R  fINEERELE - PN

EREEBEAESE -
T g

AEEFAERAET LRSS THREEZREL
EBEE A HRE—ERAET KRHIS
IR - ASEN="EEETEREIR
5845 TR AE AR SOER -

BETER  TAEEEAMAEBIERUTE
MNXEREIAR - () FHE  RKBUFEES
BRFERR  BRIEEE  BEEREE  HES
WEE (e R (i) EENEEZR : (v)
TEAER  RVASREMEZEMBEBER KX
X e FMlEFABREAEEETSRAE
Io

RIEFEEEE  MEETARZATAER
FRANBER - TEBRRER - N FEET
BRIEF LIRS/ - TE BN - MF 20
MTHE HERERLAMFESEERE < N
IAENERBESEENRE °



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiE HERERHKS

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with the Labour Law of
the PRC, Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour, Protection
of Minors of the PRC and other applicable laws and regulations relating
to preventing child or forced labour on the Group in the Year.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions
had been reported in the Year.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group has set up strict supply chain management system to ensure
high quality of service to our accommodation customers. Specific
attentions have been paid to promote the health and safety consumables
and services of the Three Branches.

The Group adheres to the principle of transparency and implements the
values of honesty, integrity and fairness in the supply chain management.
When selecting suppliers, the Group takes into account the factors such
as quality of services and products, past performance and reputation of
the suppliers. When dealing with suppliers of goods and services, the
approval procedures are in place to ensure that supplier engagements
are monitored and approved by the appropriate level of management.
The Group expects major suppliers to observe the same environmental,
social, health and safety and governance policies in their operating
practices as those adopted by the Group.

The major suppliers for accommodation operations are supply of bottles
of water, washing of bed linings and pest control. For drinking water
provided to customers, the Group places orders to acquire bottles of
water from a well-known brand which has a series of green production
procedures. For washing of bed linings, the Group requires the supplier
to provide hygiene licence and environmental protection certificate prior
to placing any order. For pest control, the Group requires the supplier
to use pest control materials or consumables which fulfil the required
standards of local laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiE HERERHKS

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

A high priority for the Group is to ensure customer satisfaction in terms
of our products and services. Strenuous efforts are made to ensure
compliance with the laws and regulations relating to product health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters of the jurisdictions
in which we operate. The Group requires its employees to comply
with applicable governmental and regulatory laws, rules, codes and
regulations.

The Group deals with lots of private and confidential information of its
hotel customers. Hence, the Group has set up strict code of conduct
requirements for their employees. In addition, the employees are required
to maintain all reasonable methods to safeguard the information of the
Group and the customers as stated in employee handbook and working
practices.

As mentioned above, smoking is prohibited in all indoor areas of the
Three Branches. First aid, fire extinguishing, evacuation, leakage and
escape exercises are regularly performed. Daily hotel room cleaning
services and regular hygiene inspection are maintained from time to time.
If a customer complains on initially assigned hotel room, the front line
staff will arrange another hotel room until it is satisfied by the customer.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the Patent
Law of the PRC and other applicable laws and regulations that has a
significant impact relating to health and safety, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress on the Group in the Year.

No significant fines had been reported in the Year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiE HERERHKS

ANTI-CORRUPTION

Corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering in any form are
strictly prohibited. The Group’s anti-corruption policies set out standards
of conduct to which all employees are required to adhere in order to
promote the integrity environment in the workplace. Any employee is
prohibited from giving and accepting of advantages, by using the excuse
of work or the authority granted from the Group. The advantages include
but not limited to money, gifts, loans, rewards, contracts, services and
entertainment.

All employees are required to strictly follow the guidelines stated in the
employee handbook, which includes but is not limited to (i) protection
of customer information, business decision and private documents; (ii)
report and contribute to the Group for any gifts, commission, rebate
exceeding RMB100; (iii) prohibit to use the name or authority of the
Group for personal benefit; and (iv) prohibit to negotiate business
separately such as signing of contract, purchase of equipment or goods
without obtaining approval from relevant superiors.

The Group encourages the reporting of dishonest acts by the employees.
The human resources department may terminate the employment
contract with the employee who carries out dishonest acts as stated in
the employee handbook. The content of the complaint should be clear
to the fact that it is forbidden to fabricate the facts without any factual
basis or vent their anger. The criteria for a valid complaint includes (i)
the individual is unfairly treated in which relevant superior handling of
the problem is not fair, abuse of power or combat retaliation; and (i) the
behaviour of individual causes damage to the interests of the Group.
All employees can raise their complaint by putting a written letter into
a complaint box located at reception of the hotel, by mail to human
resources department or even by verbal presentation.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the Anti-
Unfair Competition Law of the PRC and other applicable laws and
regulations that has a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering in the Year.

There was no legal case concerning corruption brought against the
Group or its employees in the Year.
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RiE HERERHKS

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to creating sustainable prosperity that brings
long-term social and economic benefits for all stakeholders, particularly
to maintain the relationship with interest groups which are relevant to
business operation. This is realised by first meeting the needs of the hotel
employees and then further extending the caring and services to their
families and to the surrounding community.

Although the Group has not established and documented a specific
community policy, social care is deep-seated in the Group’s corporate
culture. Employees are encouraged to participate in various charitable
events and community service.

The Group believes that such entertaining corporate team-building
activities for staff are not only beneficial to the health of staff, but are
also relaxing and conducive to team building outside of the workplace,
improving cross-departmental communications, creating a chance to
know each other in different departments and promoting fellowship
at workplace, leading to a more harmonious and productive working
environment.
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Report of the Directors

EESHRE

The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to submit
their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 5 to 7 and the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 8 to 20.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group
is principally engaged in accommodation operations, provision of
accommodation consultations and accommodation facilities management
services and other related business. The Group is also involved in the
money lending business. The foregoing discussions form parts on the
business review as contained in this Report of the Directors.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business
segments is set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on page 86 of this annual
report. The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2020.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTIES

The Group did not own any major property or property interests as at 31
December 2020.
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRE

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had no reserve available for
distribution to shareholders including share premium account and
accumulated losses.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 85 respectively.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The diversity and nature of the Group’s activities are such that the
percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
was approximately 52.9% (2019: 58.0%) of the total and the percentage
of sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer was approximately
18.4% (2019: 25.1%) and the Directors do not consider any one
customer to be influential to the Group.
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRE

The main suppliers of the Group comprise of suppliers of disposable
amenities, bed linings cleaning, laundry services, supply of bottles of
water and pest control. For the financial year ended 31 December
2020, the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 53.2% (2019: 69.5%) of the total purchases and
purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 24.1%
(2019: 35.6%) of total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers during the financial
year ended 31 December 2020.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had borrowings of principal amount
of HK$37,026,000 (2019: HK$15,000,000) from Current Controlling
Shareholder. The borrowings are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. Save for the borrowings, the Group did not have any
outstanding bank borrowings for both two years.

Moreover, on top of the above borrowings, Current Controlling
Shareholder has also made available a credit facility up to the amount of
HK$350,000,000 to the Company under substantially the same terms
with the Current Controlling Shareholder’s Borrowing under which the
Company may request for drawdown at any time prior to 7 August 2022
and any borrowing made will be unsecured and interest-free. As at 31
December 2020, credit facility of amount of HK$312,974,000 (2019:
HK$335,000,000) is available for use.

INTEREST CAPITALISATION

The Group had no capitalised interest during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRE

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for year ended 31 December 2020
is set out on page 192 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Wu (Appointed with effect from 20 March 2020)
Mr. Chung Tin Yan

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Fuer (Chairman)
Mr. Hu Xinglong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Jilin
Mr. Du Hongwei
Ms. Li Zhou

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out from pages 21 to 24 of this annual
report.
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2020 AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The service agreements entered into by the Company with each of the
executive Directors, which are currently in force and were in force during
the year ended 31 December 2020, contain indemnity provisions which
are permitted indemnity provisions under section 467 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for the benefit of
the executive Directors. Pursuant to such provisions, the Company shall
indemnify any executive Director against any liability attaching to him in
connection with any legal proceedings in which he is involved by reason
of being a Director, and in which the judgment is given in his favour or in
which he is acquitted.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
term of three years, but subject to the relevant provisions of the Articles
of Associations or any other applicable laws whereby the directors shall
vacate or retire from their office.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively. Remuneration packages
of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board.
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following Director had interest in the shares of the Company as notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code and
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO:

EENFETHRAEBREALQTRAE
HEEERS - HERG R EEE
ZHEBERRR

MEEM RZZE_TF+_A=+—H"
TEERARRIRG P EERIKZEESTAIZA
HEARR B R RABELRARRIREE
FREEGRDIZEI521F1FE 2 Bt 2 s

Approximately
percentage
of the issued

Capacity/ Number and share capital

Name of Director Nature of interest class of shares (Note 1)

HEBTRE

BHANEDL

EEpE B REmtE RG &8 RER (BF7E1)

Yuan Fuer (Note 2) Interest of a controlled 321,580,510 shares 71.72%
corporation

wER(ME2) REBOEE 2 s 321,580,5100% 71.72%

Note 1:  The approximate shareholding percentage is based on the number of — BtiF1 : HIAREE DL IER T _ZTF+ -4

shares in issue as at 31 December 2020 of 448,363,708.

Note 2. These 321,580,510 shares were registered in the name of Hehui

International Development Limited (“Hehui”). Mr. Yuan Fuer held the
entire issued share capital of Hehui and was deemed to be interested in
the 321,580,510 shares in which Hehui was interested pursuant to the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, so far as was
known to the Directors, none of the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company, not being Directors or the chief executive of the Company,
had interests in the shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

®

FERRREMALREARDFTR
- HER G R EEE 2w MK

E

MEEN R_T_ZTF+_A=+—A8"
UWTARARIFERRE(EES EMARAD (I3
$/Aﬂ%$ii%ﬁﬂz/\§>ﬁﬁ% FA A

ZRNARAIRIE B FH & B E (&5 25 3361517
BB

Aggregate
percentage of
shareholding

Name Capacity Number of shares (Note 1)

HBREESLE

HE 54 R EE (BtEE1)

Hehui Beneficial owner 321,580,510 71.72%
BHEAA

Chen Hui (Note 2) Interest of a controlled corporation 35,740,071 7.97%

BRE (FtEE2) R ENERE 2
Note 1:  The approximate shareholding percentages are based on the number of

shares in issue as at 31 December 2020 of 448,363,708.

Note 2:  As disclosed in “Form 1 — Individual Substantial Shareholder Notice” filed
by Mr. Chen Hui on 20 February 2018, Mr. Chen Hui controls 100% of
the shares in & & 7 £, which in turn controls 100% of the shares in
CHINA DRAGON ASIA CHAMPION FUND SERIES SPC, and RS
and CHINA DRAGON ASIA CHAMPION FUND SERIES SPC each holds

interests in 35,740,071 shares of the Company directly.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, so far as was
known to the Directors, no other person (not being a Director or the chief
executive of the Company) had any interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

M BAOREAS L ER T -_2F+ A4

=+—HE%&17MH448,363,708/ °

BUEBEER_SE—NF_A=+HR
[FRAE1—EAKRBEBINIZHTE - RIEL
EHEETHS100% 2 5E  MERHS
Bl # 5 CHINA DRAGON ASIA CHAMPION
FUND SERIES SPCZ 100%#&# - A itt » £2
B3 2 K& CHINA DRAGON ASIA CHAMPION
FUNDSERIESSPC & E & # A &~ 2 A
35,740,071 I 5
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Mr. Yuan Fuer, a non-executive Director of the Company, is the ultimate
beneficial controlling shareholder of Shenzhen Hazens. Shenzhen
Hazens is principally engaged in property development and property
management services business and holds interests in several hotels
which are located in the United States of America and managed by
multinational hotel management groups through its subsidiaries. Given
that the hotel business of Shenzhen Hazens and its subsidiaries is not
conducted in the target markets of the Group or places where the Group
has existing and ongoing business operations, and that the majority of
the members of the Board are independent and not connected with the
boards of Shenzhen Hazens and its subsidiaries, the Group is capable
of and has been operating independently of, and at arm’s length from
the business of Shenzhen Hazens and its subsidiaries, no competition is
considered to exist during the Year.

Save as disclosed in the above and the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management”, for the year ended 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this report, the Directors are not
aware of any business or interest of the Directors, the management of the
Company and their respective associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) that compete or may compete with the business of the Group and
any other conflict of interest which any such person has or may have with
the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected Transactions”
and “Continuing Connected Transactions” below and in Note 33
to the financial statements and those exempted from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules, there was no

(1) transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party in which any Director or any entity
connected with any Director is or was materially interested, either
directly or indirectly;

(2)  contract of significance between the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, and any of the Company’s controlling shareholders or
their subsidiaries; or

(8) contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, by any of the Company’s

controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries

subsisting during or at the end of the financial year.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisitions of shares or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporates.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company which was not
contract of service with Directors or persons engaged in the full-time
employment of the Company was entered into or existed during the year
under review.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in Note 33 (other than Note
33(c)) to the consolidated financial statements constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with all
applicable disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of such transactions.

On 16 November 2018, Current Controlling Shareholder, Hehui, has
made available a credit facility up to amount of HK$350,000,000 to the
Company (“Current Controlling Shareholder’s Credit Facility”) on normal
commercial terms or better to the Group. The borrowings drawn under
the Current Controlling Shareholder’s Credit Facility shall be repayable
on the date as set out in the individual borrowing agreements and are
interest-free and unsecured. The Company may request for drawdown at
any time prior to 7 August 2022.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has borrowings of approximately
HK$37,026,000 (2019: HK$15,000,000) from the controlling Shareholder.
The borrowings are repayable on demand, interest-free and unsecured.

\ 4
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Group has conducted the following
continuing connected transactions which were required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules.

On 29 September 2020, the Company and Hazens Holdings Group
(Shenzhen) Limited (“Hazens”) entered into the Consultancy Framework
Agreement pursuant to which the Group will provide accommodation
consultancy services to Hazens in respect of feasibility of accommodation
business at the locations proposed by Hazens and the design of
accommodation places for a term commencing from 29 September 2020
to 31 December 2020 (both date inclusive).

The principal terms of the Consultancy Framework Agreement are set out

below:

Date

Parties

Term

Nature of
transactions

29 September 2020 (after trading hours of the
Stock Exchange)

(i) The Company; and
(i)  Hazens

The term commences from 29 September
2020 and ends on 31 December 2020 (both
days inclusive)

Pursuant to the Consultancy Framework
Agreement, the Group agreed to provide the
following accommodation consultancy services
to Hazens and its subsidiaries within the term
above.

The accommodation consultancy services will
include, but not limited to: (i) seeking suitable
location in relation to the accommodation
business; (i) performing market research of
the location of accommodation business
proposed by Hazens; (iii) providing advice
on certain interior and external design for the
accommodation business; (iv) advising on
estimated renovation cost and analysis on
the financial forecast of the accommodation
business; (v) preparing operation manual
and quality manuals with reference to 1ISO
standards; and (vi) assisting Hazens in seeking
construction contractor for the accommodation
business.
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EEGHRE

Pricing basis

Payment terms

Hazens should be responsible for applying
the licenses (such as industry and commerce,
taxation, fire safety measures, health, property
ownership or rights of use, and related business
licenses (such as hotel operating license), etc.)
and relevant expenses. Hazens may also seek
qualified construction teams to decorate the
property of accommodation business according
to the standard recommended by the Group.

The parties will enter into individual agreement
for each transaction setting out specific terms
of the services including, among others, scope
of services, service fees, settlement method
and payment arrangement. Such terms will be
consistent with the terms of the Consultancy
Framework Agreement.

The basis of service fee were arrived after arm’s
length negotiations between the Group and
Hazens after taking into consideration of the
market conditions, the Group current pricing
policy of the services and on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than those offered to other customers of
the Group who are Independent Third Parties
for comparable services.

If there is no relevant market price or
comparable services that the Group provide to
Independent Third Parties, the service fees will
be determined by the relevant costs and past
performance of such consulting services of the
Group and take reference to the market price
of such comparable services.

Payment of service fees will be made according
to the payment terms of the individual
agreement for each transaction between the
parties, which will be determined by arm’s
length negotiations between the parties with
reference to, among others, the amount of
service fees payable.
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Right of first refusal:

Since Hazens is a company controlled
by Mr. Yuan Anru, a connected person
of the Company and brother of the
controlling shareholder of the Company,
the accommodation business in relation to
the Consultancy Framework Agreement,
if conducted, might constitute competing
business. To avoid any potential conflicts
and unapproved competition with the Group,
Hazens agreed if the accommodation business
in relation to the Consultancy Framework
Agreement will be conducted by Hazens or
its associate (other than the Company and its
subsidiaries) or other Independent Third Parties,
Hazens shall notify the Group in written form.

The Group has the priority to obtain such
business opportunities regarding the
accommodation business and the Group must
inform Hazens whether the Group will exercise
the right of first refusal within 30 days after
receiving the written notice.

The Group can only exercise the right of first
refusal after obtaining all independent non-
executive directors approval. If there is a conflict
of interest or potential conflict of interest from
the directors of the Group, the directors with
conflicts of interest (if any) shall be excluded in
all board meetings and its voting right regarding
whether to exercise the right of first refusal.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Annual Cap and Basis of Annual Cap

The Company estimates the annual cap of HK$8.8 million for the financial
year ending 31 December 2020. The annual cap is calculated based
on the estimated demand of relevant services by Hazens under the
Consultancy Framework Agreement and the prevailing price of similar
services provided by the Group to its Independent Third Party customers.

In order to determine the service fees for each transaction and to ensure
that the service fees charged by the Group would not be less favourable
than the service fees charged by the Independent Third Parties in the
market for similar services, the Group will (i) make reference to the pricing
of similar services with Independent Third Party customers; (i) review
historical transactions between Hazens and its Independent Third Party
suppliers for similar services (if the Group could not obtain information in
(iy for comparison); and (jii) obtain price quotations from its Independent
Third Party suppliers and mark up with a reasonable profit margin (if the
Group could not obtain information in (i) and (i) for comparison).

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”), the Company’s auditors,
were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. HLB has issued their
unqualified letter to the Board containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the
Group in accordance with the Listing Rules and confirming the matters as
stated in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have, for the purpose of
Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed and confirmed that the above
continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group were
entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) either on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (“Scheme”) which was
adopted pursuant to a resolution of the sole shareholder passed on 22
June 2011. The purpose of the Scheme is to attract, retain and motivate
talented participants to strive for future developments and expansion
of the Group. The Scheme shall be an incentive to encourage the
participants to perform their best in achieving the goals of the Group
and allow the participants to enjoy the results of the Company attained
through their efforts and contributions.

The Board may, at its discretion, invite any director, full-time employee
or part time employee with weekly working hours of 10 hours or
above of the Group, any adviser or consultant (in the areas of legal,
technical, financial or corporate managerial) to the Group, any provider
of goods and/or services to the Group, any other person who, at the
sole determination of the Board, has contributed to the Group, and any
trustee of a trust whose beneficiaries or objects include any of the above
persons to become participants of the Scheme.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme together with any options outstanding and yet
to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue from time to time. In addition to the foregoing 30%
limit, the total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all share options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of the shares in issue as at the date of completion of the
placing of the shares of the Company for the purpose of the listing on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, i.e. 14 July 2011 i.e.
18,000,000 shares, unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of
the Company at general meeting. As at the date of this annual report, the
total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme is 9,100,000,
representing approximately 2% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each participant under the Scheme (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the relevant class of securities of the
Company in issue.
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An offer of share options under the Scheme shall be deemed to have
been accepted by the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer
letter comprising acceptance of the share options duly signed by the
grantee, together with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00
by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the Company
within 28 days from the date of the offer.

Share options granted under the Scheme may be exercised at any time
during the option period after they have been granted by the Board but,
in any event, not more than 10 years commencing on the date of grant.
The share options granted shall lapse automatically (to the extent not
already exercised) on the expiry of the option period.

The subscription price for shares under the Scheme, subject to any
adjustments made pursuant to reorganisation of capital structure, shall
be a price determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the time
of grant of the relevant share options and notified to the participant
and shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date on which the relevant share options are granted; (i)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the relevant share options are
granted; and (i) the nominal value of the shares of the Company.

The Scheme became effective on 22 June 2011 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the adoption
date, i.e. until 21 June 2021.

Further details about the principal terms of the Scheme are set out in
the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in Appendix V to the
Company’s prospectus dated 30 June 2011.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
has not granted any share option under the Scheme. No share option
under this Scheme remains outstanding as at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: Nil).
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRE

PENSION SCHEMES

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to redeem its contributions to the pension scheme in future
years (2019: Nil). The Group participates in a defined contribution
retirement scheme organised by the government in the PRC and a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. Particulars of these schemes are
set out under “Employee benefits” in Note 4 of the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 were
audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited. The financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited.

Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited has resigned as the auditor of the Company
with effect from 29 June 2020. The Board, with the recommendation
from the Audit Committee, has resolved to appoint HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited as the new auditor of the Company with effect from 29
June 2020 to fill the vacancy following the resignation of Zhonghui and to
hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company. Details of the change of auditor are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 29 June 2020.

A resolution to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website of Stock
Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the Company at
www.legend-strategy.com.

By Order of the Board

Yuan Fuer
Chairman

27 February 2021
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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B &t EH A R E
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

LEGEND STRATEGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP
COMPANY LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Legend
Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 86 to 191, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$2,461,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 and, as of
that date, the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$57,137,000. As stated in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, these events or conditions, along with other matters as set
in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significant in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section above, we have
determined the matters described below to be key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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Key audit matters

BREZEE

\ 4

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EFPNEFNAEERRERSEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment (“PPE”), goodwill and right-of-use assets
(“ROU assets”)

Refer to notes 17, 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

The Group had interests in various hotels in the People
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The carrying amounts of
PPE, goodwill and ROU assets were approximately of
HK$36,332,000, HK$2,003,000 and HK$163,180,000
respectively as at 31 December 2020. Given the adverse
impact brought by COVID-19 pandemic, there is a risk that
the carrying amounts of PPE, goodwill and ROU assets are
higher than their recoverable amounts.

Management considers each hotel to be a separate
cash-generating unit (“CGU”) and performs impairment
assessments, where impairment indicators exist, to
determine the recoverable amount of the hotels’ PPE,
goodwill and ROU assets. The recoverable amount is
determined as the CGU’s value-in-use, which involves
estimation of future business performance and key
assumptions including discount rates, occupancy rates,
average room rates, etc.. Based on the impairment
assessments carried out by management, no impairment
loss were recognised in respect of PPE, goodwill and ROU
assets during the year ended 31 December 2020.

We focused on this area as the impairment assessments
and determination of recoverable amounts involve significant
management’s judgments and estimations.
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BRI RARE M FEIREMFE17 ~ 1920 ©

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessments including, but not limited to the
followings:

° Evaluating management’s future cash flow forecasts
and the process by which they were prepared for each
CGU, including testing the mathematical accuracy of
the underlying calculations and compared the future
cash flow forecasts to the latest approved budgets
and actual results of the prior period;

o Assessing the appropriateness of methodologies
used by management with the support of the external
valuers;

° Assessing the key assumptions including occupancy
rates and average room rates applied in the forecasts
by comparing them to historical results, economic and
industry forecasts;

o Assessing external professional valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity, and reading the valuation
reports prepared by the external valuers; and

° Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used by the external
valuers.

Based on our audit procedures performed, we found the
assessments of the recoverability of the carrying amounts
of PPE, goodwill and ROU assets were supported by the
evidence we obtained.
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 were audited by another auditors who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements on 14 February 2020.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A

Hth=H

BEREEBE—_T-NAFt-A=1+—HLFE
AR RREEMRBAER - 2R
TR CRF_ATMOREURENBERRERE

REER -
Hv&#

BERREFAHEMERERT - Rf0EHR
BREFHRTAESHNEN  BETEEFEEVE
R LB I F B BET RS -

BAEERE M BRRIELNER L REBEA
B o R T HEMEMEREMTAREE

=
4w o

IEZGEEPBHREAMS - RANTEEMAE
HipER - tmEBEMERES BRE MK
BRARMEFZBRETETNENFEEX
PR IUFFEERFERRL - EREFE
HITHIIE - MRAEMRBR/EMERFEEXN
Rl - BT RREZEE - EE T H
BV A ERIRSE -

ESNBEREESENRESUBERR
ARENERE

BERAEEARBERBEEBSFMAGRMAE
FEMBHREER REB(REEPDEHER
ERBGEB®RE  WSHEEMBRRIED
BEEMAFORR  REEEARRREGEAM
BRI ERAREES] - SRS M BHRER
AEHERRRFE R M BB E KRR

i o

ERSEAMBHRERE  EFAREME &
SERFBKENRS  YTREEFERLLEER
MERGER) - BRIFEZFER EEEE
BT I EE - SR 2N EE A B R AT
MIE - BRIEEARAUAFELLE BERD
GFHA

EREB

12 o

18
\\\\

AR

B ERENMBHREE

A



Independent Auditors’ Report
B % B R

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Yu Chi Fat.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practising Certificate Number: P05467

Hong Kong, 27 February 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HREeBEsREMEZERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
bt %22 —E-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FET FBT
Revenue & 8 50,678 45,585
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (17,752) (14,474)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BEREETE
equipment (3,069) (3,998)
Employee benefit expenses EB R 9 (14,506) (16,918)
Utilities AFEHE (1,705) (2,400)
Other operating expenses Heg@Emms (11,333) (15,258)
Other income A 11 3,336 2,969
Operating profit (loss) EIERR (EE) 5,649 (4,494)
Finance costs B R AR 12 (5,505) (3,626)
Profit (loss) before tax BRBIATRERI (BE8) 144 (8,120)
Income tax expense s 13 (2,605) (7,002)
Loss for the year FAFE 14 (2,461) (15,122)
Other comprehensive income (loss): Hi2mEUWA (BE) :
Items that may be subsequently Rt EF LR
reclassified to profit or loss: A
Exchange differences on translating foreign A Z /G5NEFSE A 2 (B =58
operations 889 612)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ER2EEEAE (1,572) (15,734)
Profit (loss) for the year LR A LA EREF
attributable to: (B8) :
Owners of the Company PA/NEIE/ZEPN 2,063 (14,970)
Non-controlling interests EISuyg (4,524) (152)
(2,461) (15,122)
Total comprehensive income (loss) NTATEEFRZEKA
for the year attributable to: (E518) 48 %8 .
Owners of the Company RATEE A 3,224 (15,586)
Non-controlling interests R (4,796) (148)
(1,572) (15,734)
Earnings (loss) per share BREF (E8) 16
- Basic (Hong Kong cents) —ZEARCGEW) 0.46 (3.34)
- Diluted (Hong Kong cents) —E#E (B(L) 0.46 (3.34)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  B& i B sF i B 4R & B 75 T3k N A] sk B A9 — 26

financial statements. 9 e
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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As at 31 December 2020 R-_Z-_ZF+_-_F=+—H

\ 4

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E—NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FH&T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - B KEAE 17 36,332 11,138
Rental deposits HEZS 18 2,720 2,921
Goodwill [EES 19 2,003 1,879
Prepayments TERIE 18 104 145
Right-of-use assets FREEE 20 163,180 39,891
Deferred tax assets REMRIBE = 21 2,690 1,937
207,029 57,911
Current assets REEE
Rental deposits MEES 18 2,722 392
Prepayments, deposits and FENFIE - B2k
other receivables H b pE Uk IR 18 1,150 977
Trade receivables PRI R TR 22 548 611
Inventories FE 23 110 144
Bank and cash balances RIT R &R 19,969 11,201
24,499 13,325
Total assets BEE 231,528 71,236
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FEATBR SR R B FE A 5RIE 24 12,238 4,104
Tax payable FERELIE 2,214 2,755
Provision for asset retirement EEE EE R A 25 - 472
Lease liabilities HEaE 26 30,158 13,521
Borrowings EE 27 37,026 15,000
81,636 35,852
Net current liabilities FREBAE (57,137) (22,527)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBAERE 149,892 35,384
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A B AR R

As at 31 December 2020

RZZE=ZTF+=-_A=+—H

2020 2019
—EC_EHF —E—NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FHT FH&TT
Non-current liabilities ERBEME
Provision for asset retirement MEEEEEIR B 25 444 397
Lease liabilities HEAaE 26 147,394 31,361
147,838 31,758
Net assets EEZE 2,054 3,626
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves EXRfEE
Share capital f& s 28 4,484 4,484
Reserves {5 2,589 (635)
Equity attributable to owners of RATHEE AR
the Company 7,073 3,849
Non-controlling interests eI AE (5,019) (223)
Total equity A 2,054 3,626

The consolidated financial statements on pages 86 to 191 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 February 2021
and are signed on its behalf by:

Yuan Fuer
RER
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Chung Tin Yan
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBHR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EOREEARL
Non-
Share Share Exchange Statutory ~ Shareholders'  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve  contributions losses Sub-total interests Total
e RBEE EX G EERE Ryt ZitEE gt FERES 2
Note () Note (i) Note (il Note (i)
) B (] )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk T T Thr TR ThT TR T TEn
At1 January 2019 RZB-n%
-A-H 4484 261,578 656 1,743 9,112 (258,139) 19,435 (75) 19,360
Loss for the year ENEE - - - - - (14,970) (14,970) (15 (15,122)
Other comprehensive (oss) - £ 27 (E#2)
income A - - 616) - - - 616) 4 612
At 31 December 2019 and R=E-7%
at 1 January 2020 tZA=1-A
RR=%-%%
-A-H 4,484 261,578 40 1,743 9,112 (273,108) 3,849 (223) 3,626
Proft (oss) for the year P (E518) = = S = = 2,063 2,063 (4524) (2,461)
Other comprehensive income E£ 2 ERA (8
foss) ) - - 1,161 - - - 1,161 () 869
At31December2020  H-E-EE
+=A=1-8 4,484 261,578 1,201 1,743 9,112 (271,045) 7,073 (5,019) 2,054
Notes: BitsE
0] Share premium (i) A&t =18
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share BERERSAANE  AARRMEENES
premium account of the Company are distributable to the shareholders of AR T AR R - EEEREZIRNRER
the Company provided that immediately following the date on which the BiE AR R RIZEERENBER —REB AR E
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to HREIE -
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
(i)  Exchange reserve (i) EREE
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising P R E B INE R IS RERELENATA
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations. The HNEZFERERK o B TDIRIRAR & M IS R
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in FAPTE ST BCREEIE ©
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
(i)  Statutory reserve @iy SRERE
The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is appropriated from the EERE AT DR » BAASEBEH RE AR
profit after taxation of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable R B8 AR KA IR BR B 14 00 7 o 8
laws and regulations in the PRC. B o
(v)  Shareholders’ contributions (iv) BREEE

The shareholders’ contribution represent waiver of interest expenses on
borrowings from shareholders.

BRETERRBBRERON SF -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—E-ZF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
Cash flows from operating activities KETHELENRESRE
Profit (loss) before tax BREE AT R A (E51E) 144 (8,120)
Adjustments for: KRR -
Bank interest income SRITHE WA (34) (227)
Reversal of provision for asset retirement HwEF B ER R ERE (103) (1,378)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W - BEMRRETE 3,069 3,998
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 17,752 14,474
Finance cost on provision for asset retirement HEEEERBENRERR 23 74
Gain on early repayment of borrowings IRAEEER 2 W = (1,046)
Interest on borrowings from the Former Controlling A% A I B3 £5 2k 9 F1| 2,
Shareholder = 1,091
Impairment loss recognised in respect of property, HERYIZE - BE LR ERERE
plant and equipment - 435
Impairment loss recognised in respect of right-of- (£ A EERRIREEE
use assets - 1,404
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEBMNE 5,482 2,461
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID-198R M IR 2 (1,219) =
Operating profit before working capital changes LEE S EHAIMLE R 25,114 13,166
Change in trade and other receivables JFEE LA B K R L At L R T A ()] 1,183
Change in rental deposits HEReNE (1,971) (204)
Change in inventories FENE 4 65
Change in investments at fair value through BATER ABR 2 IREREE)
profit or loss - 5,923
Change in trade and other payables P AT B 50 R JEL Ath AT SR IR Y 1,134 (2,921)
Change in provision for asset retirement HREEEERBHBEED (377) =
Cash generated from operations REMBHRE 23,932 17,162
Income tax paid ERFEH (3,893) (3,611)
Net cash generated from operating activities R EENFTIS IR 2 H 58 20,039 13,551

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—E-ZF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Cash flows from investing activities REZHELENRESRE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment EEME - BB K& (26,309) (6,591)
Interest received BEFE 34 227
Net cash used in investing activities KEEBFTRAMNE S FRE (26,275) (6,364)
Cash flows from financing activities REIHEENESRE
Proceeds from borrowings B RFT1S5RIA 21,260 5,000
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FEAS I R i 2 IR 6,884 =
Repayment of lease liabilities EEEEAE (7,307) (13,635)
Lease interest paid EREERNE (5,482) (2,461)
Repayment of borrowings BEBN - (11,906)
Net cash generated from (used in) BE RGP IR & F8E
financing activities 15,355 (23,002)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and RERESEEWLMOHL)
cash equivalents o] 9,119 (15,815)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FYRe RIREEEY
of the year 11,201 27,650
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEPE R EE )R8 (351) (634)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year F£ANBRERBELSZEY 19,969 11,201
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands. The address of its principal place of business is
Suite 1702, 17/F., World-Wide House, No. 19 Des Voeux Road
Central, Central, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

Its parent is Hehui International Development Limited (the
“Controlling Shareholder”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, and is beneficially owned as to 100% by Mr. Yuan
Fuer (“Mr. Yuan”), who is also the non-executive director of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the accommodation operations and provision
of accommodation consultations and accommodation facilities
management services and other related businesses in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”) which is same as the functional currency of the
Company. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
the nearest thousand (HK$'000) unless otherwise stated.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

—REH

AARIRHASHSEMANIABRA
7] o i #¥ = 5 4k A& Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° ==
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BERMEXFBER AR (B E
R ©

H &2 A AHehui International Development
Limited ([#ERRARER |) © Z A RN RBE X
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EDBEEEB100% s - RITRARF]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.

GOING CONCERN

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately HK$2,461,000
(2019: HK$15,122,000) for the year ended 31 December 2020
and, as of that date, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$57,137,000 (2019: HK$22,527,000). These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Therefore, the Group may be unable to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon
the financial support of the Controlling Shareholder and the
beneficial owner, at a level sufficient to finance the working capital
requirements of the Group and the Controlling Shareholder has
undertaken not to demand repayment for the borrowings due by
the Group of approximately HK$37,026,000, until the Company
can meet all the other obligations. The Controlling Shareholder
has agreed to provide adequate funds for the Group to meet its
liabilities as they fall due, of which the beneficial owner has agreed
to undertake the amount. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
unused credit facility of approximately HK$312,974,000 granted by
the Controlling Shareholder is available for use.

Further, the outbreak of COVID-19 has brought additional
uncertainties to the Group’s operations. In order to improve the
Group’s operating performance and alleviate its liquidity risk,
management is implementing measures to broaden its revenue
base, control costs and contain capital expenditures. Further
investments in accommodation operations and provision of
accommodation consultations and accommodation facilities
management services will be made only when the Group has
sufficient financial resources after meeting its day-to-day working
capital and other capital commitment requirements.

The directors of the Company are therefore of the opinion that it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on
a going concern basis. Should the Group be unable to continue
as a going concern, adjustments would have to be made to the
consolidated financial statements to adjust the value of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities as current assets and liabilities, respectively.

HERE

HE-_T-ZTF+-_A=1+—HIHF
B - N & E 815 % B 18 492,461,000
BIL(ZZFE—N%F : 15,122,000 7T )
FEZE%ZH  AEENFRBAR
B #57137,0008 L (ZF — N &F
22,527,000/ 7T) ° ZIBNHBHFEERKR
THEERZIJEHAEEEECE N
NERENRERE - At - NEBERMAE
RIEF&ETRRREEENBITHARG -
ERAMBHRREEFECEREER
C EAEBEBUR A IEIR IR R B S
AP BEER  ESBREUAREAE
SEMNEEESHT K MERREE
EHE TN ERKEEASELERNERD
37,026,000 % 7T B 2| A R Al 8L %0 B 17
FrEEMmEaERL - ERREERBES
AREBIBHENES  UEBIH A
B EFEZHEACEEREZER
H - RZE-FTF+-_A=+—H ' &
SEHEBIERBREMRE RS AEEM
BHREZ 49312,974,000/8 7T Al E(E A ©

1

o Ry

SN - COVID-19R& 15 45 AN SR B € 75 75 21
THEK "ARBAKENRERAR
BREARDESRR EEEREER
B AR s B - B ARAR RR
HEARX - EEAKERERERE
LEESMNEMERNEKEFTRRIDESR
RANMBEIRE - hE@E—FREE
BEEARRAEBEDAREEREE
B ARF TS

At - ARREERRRGEKEEE
REEEMBHRRIVERE - MAKHE
BERERLE  ABAHSREMB®RE
FHAE  UEAKEEENEEAR
ErWEOI SRR - ABER LR EMR
BINBBELDRHIERBDEEMEBEE
MOBRRBEEMARE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

2.

GOING CONCERN (continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections. The cash flow projections cover a period of not less
than twelve months from 31 December 2020. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, based on these cash flow projections
and in light of the above, the Group will have sufficient financial
resources in the coming twelve months to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first
time, which are mandatory effective for the annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to HKFRS
16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions.

Except as described below, the application of the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

3.

“EFE+ A=t HIFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Impacts on early application of Amendment to HKFRS
16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

The Group has applied the amendment for the first time in the
current year. The amendment introduces a new practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to assess whether a COVID-19-related rent
concession is a lease maodification. The practical expedient only
applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 that meets all of the following conditions:

o the change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes in
lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same way it
would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 Leases if the
changes were not a lease maodification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments. The
related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven
or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The application of the amendment had no impact to the opening
accumulated losses at 1 January 2020. The Group has benefited
from one month waiver of lease payments on several leases in the
PRC. The Group has derecognised the part of lease liability that
has been extinguished by the forgiveness of lease payments using
the discount rates originally applied to these leases respectively,
resulting in a decrease in the lease liabilities of approximately
HK$1,219,000, which has been recognised as lease concession in
“other income” for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

3.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments!

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, — Phase 24
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020°

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

3.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 3.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as current
or non-current, which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current and non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at the
end of the reporting period. Specifically, the amendments
clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the
liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are met at
the end of the reporting period, even if the lender does
not test compliance until a later date; and

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of the
entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately as an equity instrument
applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

The application of amendments will not result in any reclassification
of the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or
value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are observable inputs for the asset or liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE —

4.

“RE+ A=t HILHFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specially, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and
the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to
the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to apply an
optional concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar identifiable assets. The gross assets under assessment
exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and
goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets is
determined not to be a business and no further assessment is
needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date
of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an
asset and a liability in the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in
HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date. Right-of-use assets are recognised and
measured at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favorable or unfavorable terms of the lease
when compared with market terms.
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4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquire (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If,
after re-assessment, the net amount the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquire (if any), the excess is recongised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.
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4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at
subsequent reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquire prior to the acquisition date that
have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed directly
of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see above),
and additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.
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4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Gooadwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which the goodwiill
is monitored for internal management purposes and not larger than
an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the
cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating units,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-
generating unit within a group of cash-generating units), the amount
of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative
values of the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed of
and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.
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“EFE+ A=t HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operations and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purpose. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvements, and
is stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation begins when
the relevant assets are available for use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are
available for use. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of an item of properties, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application or arising from business combinations, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on
the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed. As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group
reasonably expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual leases within
the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration of components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease component.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components from lease component, and instead account for the
lease component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring the
site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments to lease
liabilities resulting from COVID-19-related rent concessions in which
the Group applied the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which in Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on
the consolidated statements of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o Payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change in market rental rates following a
market rent review, in which cases the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using
the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

Except for COVID-19-related rent concessions in which the Group
applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a lease
modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease
incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the modified lease
by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
COVID-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has elected
to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the change is
a lease modification if all of the following conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease.

A leasee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments. The
related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven
or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which the event occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories, less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contract with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets, or financial
liabilities as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE —

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9 or initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that is required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.
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4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables and bank balances) which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
which are in trade nature.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

U)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

U)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

RBGEVBHRRNEERE
ERFBER®)

SRMTITAE)
THEE(E)
SREEREE)

(i) (EERESBREEGE)

b EBREH(MERHOIARSE
)

© ERANERARBBER
AMBERENEBESLE IR
B mEERALHERAR
AARTERNES

(d) fEFRAE AJ AL e b A S
TTHBER %

€ “ETREERERMSEM
BREEMIHR -

(v) HIEEERER

EEHBTHFITRENEEN R
2 N BR[O R A B (a0 F
THRBEBICEARERFE)
AEBERMESREE - BERZE
RERR(HMAE)  EMENERE
BEARIDARAEEYEREFiE
TTERBIATTIRE) - MEHBA AR L
RER - EMERKEERSHE

7o

Annual Report 2020
T _THEFER



For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

4.

4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data and forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. The Group uses a practical
expedient in estimating ECL on trade receivables using a
provision matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on a
collective basis taking into consideration past due information
and relevant credit information such as forward looking

macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration
the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The groupings in regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

RBGEVBHRRNEERE
ERFBER®)

SRMIAE)
THEE(E)
SREEREE)

BEIEEEEEES RS - UBERE
AR R D EREERBAFE -

R A TR 6 B A A BT R RS
Y BESRMEAEBEEEAE  Elt
BRT - AR RS S B
R -

AEERBAESRTIANKRRENE
BRRRABME SR ITANRERENE
B EE S RSCRRIRRSN - HARE
EREIREEBRTRER

RILHERTREE

AEEERKDEERSRENA O
MEmRE A EMEENREEMARE
MEAE D AR LB REZET S —EiE
R ILFEREREE -

RIEERZBHEHKATENSREE
B ZAEREERCKREREER
Mz REEZEN Bt PR

Annual Report 2020
T _THEFER



4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables (excluding
contract liabilities and other tax payables), lease liabilities and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents
the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value
of the goods or services transferred to customers to date relative
to the remaining goods or services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration in
an amount that corresponds directly with the value of the Group’s
performance completed to date (i.e. service contracts in which the
Group bills a fixed amount for each month of service provided), the
Group recognises revenue in an amount to which the Group has
the right to invoice.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Accommodation operations and provision of accommodation
facilities management services

As the customers simultaneously receive and consumer the benefit
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs, the
Group recognises the service fee received or receivable from the
customers as its revenue over time based on output method, which
is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to date
relative to the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration in
an amount that corresponds directly with the value of the Group’s
performance competed to date, the Group recognises revenue in
the amount to which the Group has the right to invoice.

Provision of accommodation consultations services

Revenue from provision of accommodation consultations services is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of
the distinct services.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of
when the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the

termination benefit and when it recognises any related restructuring
costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Any
changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax current payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit (loss) before tax because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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4.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
reductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use
assets over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease
liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (or tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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4.

“EFE+ A=t HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually, when it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a
cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of
a group of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any gooduwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or the group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or cash-generating unit or the group of cash-generating units)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on
a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE —

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their original
condition, as required by the terms and conditions of the lease, are
recognised at the date of inception of the lease at the directors’
best estimate of the expenditure that would be required to restore
the assets. Estimates are regularly reviewed and adjusted as
appropriate for new circumstances.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

U

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Company or to a parent of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE —

4.

“RE+ A=t HILHFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so
that outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as a provision.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets within
the next financial year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. ATt TEHABEZENEERR
UNCERTAINTY (Continued) (%)
(a) Estimated impairment of property, plant and (@) Y% BERREREAESE

equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset value;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, including right-
of-use assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the assets belong, including allocation of
corporate assets when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, otherwise recoverable amount
is determined at the smallest group of CGUs, for which the
relevant corporate assets have been allocated. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
affect the recoverable amounts. Furthermore, the cash flows
projections, growth rate and discount rate are subject to
greater uncertainties in the current year due to uncertainty on
how the COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve and
volatility in financial markets, including potential disruptions
in the Group’s accommodation operations, provision of
accommodation consultations and accommodation facilities
management services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE —

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of right-
of-use assets and property, plant and equipment subject
to impairment assessment were HK$163,180,000 and
HK$36,332,000 (2019: HK$39,891,000 and HK$11,138,000)
respectively, after taking into account the impairment losses
of HK$1,404,000 and HK$435,000 in respect of right-of-use
assets and property, plant and equipment that have been
recognised respectively in 2019 and no such impairment loss
has been recognised in 2020. Details of the impairment of
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment are
disclosed in Notes 20 and 17 respectively.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
units (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in
use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units (or
a group of cash-generating units) and a suitable discount
rates in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which results in downward revision
of future cash flows or upward revision of discount rate, a
material impairment loss or future impairment loss may arise.
Furthermore, the estimated cash flows and discount rate
are subject to higher degree of estimation uncertainties in
the current year due to uncertainty on how the COVID-19
pandemic may progress and evolve and volatility in financial
markets, including potential disruptions of the Group’s
accommodation operations due to the travel entry restrictions
were imposed by various cities in PRC.
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Estimated impairment of goodwill (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of goodwill
is HK$2,003,000 (2019: HK$1,879,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation and impairment loss made for
the year are disclosed in Note 19.

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2020, a deferred tax asset of
HK$2,690,000 (2019: HK$1,937,000) in relation to unused
tax losses has been recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position. The realisability of the deferred
tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits
or taxable temporary differences will be available in the
foreseeable future such that the deferred tax assets can be
utilised. The management of the Group determine whether
deferred tax assets would be recognised based on profit
projections of the respective group entities and the expected
reversal of taxable temporary differences in the coming years.
The Group reviews the probability of utilising tax losses in
future at the end of each reporting period. In cases where the
actual future taxable profits generated are more or less than
expected, an additional recognition or a reversal of deferred
tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or
loss for the year in which such a recognition or reversal takes
place.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

(a)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. €RIA
Categories of financial instruments (@) eWMIAZHHE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH&T FAETT
Financial assets: ERMEE -
Financial assets at amortised costs B EN AT ENSREE 26,198 15,277
Financial liabilities: SRIEME :
Financial liabilities at amortised costs ~ Z#HEKAANHEN SR ARG 226,102 63,623
Financial risk management objectives and (b) EBiREREEEERBE

(b)

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, rental deposits and other receivables, bank
balances, trade and other payables (excluding other
tax payables and contract liabilities), lease liabilities and
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes.

The risks associated with the financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group does not enter into or trade in derivative financial
instruments either for hedging or speculative purposes. There
has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market risks
or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk
during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cContinued) 6. E@MIRA®E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERBREEBEEZERBERE)

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk

The Group major operates in Hong Kong and the
PRC. For the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, majority of
transactions are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”),
which is their functional currency. For the Company
and other non-PRC subsidiaries of the Group, business
transactions are principally denominated in HK$, which
is their functional currencies.

The Group did not have any significant financial assets
or financial liabilities that are denominated in a currency
other than their functional currency as at 31 December
2020 and 2019. Therefore, the management does not
expect that there will be any significant currency risk.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to lease liabilities. The Group is also exposed to
cash flow interest risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balances which carry at prevailing market interest. The
Group manages its interest rate exposures by assessing
the potential impact arising from any interest rate
movements based on interest rate level and outlook.

No sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk on bank
balance is presented as management consider the
sensitivity on interest rate risk on bank balance is
insignificant.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables and bank balances. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit
risks associated with its financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #H#E-_Z _ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €WMIHw

MEEREEEERBEE)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

U

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on corporate customers.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. The
normal credit period to these corporate customers is
30 days. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

ECL rates of the trade receivables are assessed to be
minimal, because of the corporate customers’ good
background and reputation and no past default history.
Thus, the loss allowance provision for such balances
was insignificant and no loss allowance provision was
recognised in respect of the trade receivables for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

No credit evaluations are performed to walk-in
customers that are made in cash, credit cards or other
payment platforms. The Group’s trade receivables
in connection with sales settled through payment
platforms such as Alipay or WeChat Pay are with high
credit rating and no past due history. These assets
are short-term in nature and the probability of default
is negligible on the basis of high-credit rating issuers
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
and accordingly, no loss allowance was recognised in
respect of the trade receivables.

At the end of the reporting periods, the Group does not
have any significant concentration of credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
(i)  Deposits and other receivables

The directors of the Company make periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of deposits and other
receivables based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The directors of the Company
believe that there are no significant increase in credit
risk of these amounts since initial recognition and
the Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL
basis. For the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, the Group assessed the ECL for deposits and
other receivables were insignificant and thus no loss
allowance was recognised.

(i) Bank balances

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because
the counterparties are financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. The Group assessed 12m ECL for
bank balances by reference to information relating
to probability of default and loss given default of the
respective credit rating grades published by external
credit rating agencies. Based on the average loss rates,
the 12m ECL is considered to be insignificant.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

“EFE+ A=t HIFE

6. EMIA#®)

(b) MEEREEEERBEE)
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mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. TETHR®
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BERREEBEEZERBKE)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEEZER (&)
The following table details the Group’s contractual maturity TRFMTEBEESHEBENE LT
for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based HYIEM - RIETIRBASE T aE7A
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based R EFEBHHAMREMEE
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to BEREHE °
pay.
Total
ag
Effective  Less than Between Over Undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1year 2and 5 years 5years  cashflow amount
KRR
BRF= -£R WEERE RENE BeRE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHT FHT FHET
At 31 December 2020 R-E-ZE%+-A=+-H
Trade and other payables BB R M EFIE - 11,524 - - 11,524 11,524
Borrowings &3 - 37,026 - - 37,026 37,026
Lease liabilities HEAR 30,780 66,729 139,371 236,880 171,552
79,330 66,729 139,371 285,430 226,102
Total
ek
Effective Less than Between Over  Undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1year 2andb years 5 years cash flow amount
REEF
ERFIZ —FN  WEERF RFNE Being REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF+-ZA=1-H
Trade and other payables  FEIERF R EMENFIE = 3,741 = = 3,741 3,741
Borrowings &3 - 15,000 - - 15,000 15,000
Lease liabilties HEEE 8 13,941 20,771 19,465 54,177 44,882
32,682 20,771 19,465 72,918 63,623
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mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —

6.

“EFE+ A=t HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements were approximate of
their fair values.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s management, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM?”), for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
types of services provided.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8
Operating Segments are as follows:

- Accommodation operations and provision of accommodation
facilities management services

- Provision of accommodation consultations services
During the year, the Group commenced provision of

accommodation consultations services, and it is considered as a
new operating and reportable segment by the CODM.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

7. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. REDHWER®)
(Continued)
Segment revenue and results DEBUR R R HEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by T AAREBEIZRA 2R LEEDEE S
reportable and operating segments: R R EE DT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-_ZF+-A=+—HLEE
Accommodation
operations and
provision of
accommodation Provision of
facilities = accommodation
management consultations
services services Total
AEEE
PR Rt
AR REEE
EERE BARE k)
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TR TR Tz
Segment revenue 7 ElE 37,982 12,696 50,678
Segment results NEfEE 10,819 3,540 14,359
Interest income FEMA 34
Finance costs BERA (5,505)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEERL (8,744)
Profit before tax R AT A 144

146 Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

7. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

“EFE+ A=t HIFE

REFIER (@)

2 U R AR ()
BE-F-NE+-A=+—HILERE

Accommodation

operations and

provision of

accommodation

facilities

management
services Total

FEEE

LA R @t

By
EIBPRTS Fek
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FBT FiBT
Segment revenue 7 EpU s 45,585 45,585
Segment results DEEE 11,699 11,699
Interest income FLEHA 227
Finance costs BUE RN (3,626)
Unallocated corporate expenses RABLE R (16,420
Loss before tax BT RIE R (8,120)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There was no inter-segment revenue in
both years.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accountings policies. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the segment results represents the profit earned
by each segment without allocation of certain administration costs,
certain other income, director’s emoluments, interest income,
finance costs and other corporate expenses. For the year ended
31 December 2019, the segment results represents loss from
each segment without allocation of certain administrative costs,
certain depreciation for property, plant and equipment, certain
depreciation for right-of-use assets, certain other income, directors’
emoluments, interest income, finance costs and other corporate
expenses. This measure is reported to the CODM for the purpose
of revenue allocation and performance assessment.

EHBE2HmoBEEEREIBELZ
Yegs o FAfESFE I 2 o) BB M s o

REDBZ G BRERNEE 2 @5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

7. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

No segment assets and segment liabilities are presented as the
information is not regularly reported to the CODM for the purpose
of resource allocation and assessment of performance. Therefore,
only segment revenue and segment results are presented.

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment results:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

7. BEHITFER (&)

P L6 E S E )

VTEZINDBEERSBEE  RAR
WIHEHMRERDERKRRFZA TR
RERREZHESR - At - 255
BB as N 0 R ZEAE o

Hitb

ARADBREMAEZEH

BEH

BECZ-EF+-A=+T-HALEEE

Accommodation
operations and
provision of
accommodation Provision of
facilites ~ accommodation
management consultations
services services Total
REEEEUR
REEETERKE REETRE
ER R AR A
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THET THET THET
Depreciation of property, 0mE - BEREERTE
plant and equipment 2,729 340 3,069
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREERE 14,382 3,370 17,752

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE-_ZT_-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILtEFE

7. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. REDHER®)
(Continued)
Other segment information (Continued) Hittn HBER ()
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE_Z-NFT+_A=+—HILFE
Accommodation
operations and
provision of
accommodation
facilities
management
services Unallocated Total
FEeE
DA R ARt
FEiE
ERRH RO k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT
Depreciation of property, 0¥ BELRETE
plant and equipment 3,424 574 3,998
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREENE 11,263 3,211 14,474
Impairment loss recognised HWE  BERSEBEINESE
in respect of property,
plant and equipment 435 = 435
Impairment loss recognised S AEEERRRESSE
in respect of right-of-use assets 1,404 - 1,404
Geographical information EE R
Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers is ERAEEREIINTBERPREMNE
presented based on the location of customers. For the year ended BOREBEREFPHEEYN  BHEZZT
31 December 2020, revenue of approximately HK$50,678,000 “EF+_RAR=+—HLEFE K
(2019: HK$45,585,000) were derived in the PRC. % #750,678,000 B T (=& — L&

45,585,000/ ) SR B H -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

7.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)

Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented
based on the geographical location of the assets.

7.

REFIER (@)

HwEER(E)

AEBZIFRBDEEEHNIIZEEMIE

VA=l

Non-current assets

FEREBEE
2020 2019
= —TNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHE T FHET
By geographical location RitEvEE S
Hong Kong B 8,369 4,861
PRC s 193,250 48,192
201,619 53,053

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred tax
assets.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers of corresponding years individually

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as
follows:

Mz SERBEETERESB TAMRIENEA

FREREFNER

REERFEREGASEAKDEB
10% M {E R 2 P Hy YR &5 T

2020 2019

—ECEF —ZE-NEF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

THET FET

Customer A' ZEA =3 11,463
Customer B! =RFEB! 5,913 8,198
Customer C' =EC 6,330 =
Customer D? BFED? 9,311 =
Customer E! BRFEE! 5,273 =

! Revenue from accommodation operations and provision of
accommodation facilities management services segment.

e Revenue from accommodation operations and provision of
accommodation facilities management services segment and
provision of accommodation consultations services.

& The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total

revenue of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —

8.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate amount of accommodation

“EFE+ A=t HIFE

8. Wz

operations, provision of consultations and accommodation facilities EEARBEINNAT

management services as set out as follows:

Westg (X182 &  IRIERHRERRE

2020 2019
—E-S& —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Accommodation operations and FTEEE MR R M E R AR
provision of accommodation
facilities management services 37,982 45,585
Provision of accommodation A EZ RS
consultations services 12,696 -
Revenue from contracts with customers EZEF &MUk 50,678 45,585
Timing of revenue recognition HEFSANRREZ K[
from contracts with customers
At a point in time AR 2, 12,696
Over time R—BRREA 37,982 45,585
50,678 45,585
The disaggregation of revenue by geographical location is IRHIBRAL B B9 2 WS B 3T 4 2 9 Zp4
consistent with the segment disclosures under Note 4. TR o
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mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

8. REVENUE
Performance obligations for contracts with customers

Accommodation operations and provision of accommodation
facilities management services

Revenue of accommodation operations and provision of
accommodation facilities management services are recognised
over time using output method when the service are provided. The
Group allows an average credit period is not more than 30 days to
travel agents and corporate customers.

Provision of accommodation consultations services

Revenue of accommodation consultations services is recognised at
a point in time when the related services are rendered.

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

g

HEFSHNNBHER

1E186 28 RIE R TH Rt & RS
EEEERRBEEREEEREHUK
= R IR RS B 2 R o ORI — R
MR - AEBAFKITHREERP
BT EEHTHEIBE30H -
TERE B A AR

(£ 78 o4 5 AR 75 /O M AR 2 4 48 B R 755 1
RS RAMER

EEEANAX(BREESHM)

2020 2019

—B-ERF —E-NEF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHT FiT

Salaries, wages and allowances e TEMEM 13,230 15,158
Pension obligations BREEE 884 1,563
Other benefits E g7l 392 197
14,506 16,918

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments paid and payable to each of the directors

and chief executive of the Company for the year, disclosed

pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Companies
Ordinance (“CQ”), is as follows:

10.

EENKRETEAS ZHM N
KageEHM2EE

(@) EERBESTHARZHM
RFEA AR R R ARSI A
alERl]) - FRER REMEAQR
EEREETHRAER 2 HMMEEN
™

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits schemes
Fees inkind  contribution Total
e 2R Rifecta
e BENER HR k]
Note HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
(s THER THERT TR TR
For the year ended BZ-Z2-EF%
31 December 2020 +=ZRA=1+—-BLEE
Executive directors: HTES:
Chen Wu PR (@) 1,228 - 11 1,239
Chung Tin Yan BRI - 900 18 918
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Yuan Fuer RER = = = -
Hu Xinglong fid: - - - -
Independent non-executive BV FHITEE :
directors:
Wu Jilin REM 120 - - 120
Du Hongwei HEE 120 - - 120
Li Zhou 53 120 - - 120
1,588 900 29 2,517
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

10. EERRSTHAB ZEEH A

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID FEEBREEFMEE®)
EMPLOYEES (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERBESTHRABZEFME)
(Continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits schemes
Fees in kind contribution Total
e EER RIREEE
e EWEF s ek
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(s FET FEr TEr THT
For the Year ended BZ_Z-NF
31 December 2019 +ZB=t—-HLEE
Executive directors: HTES
Chung Tin Yan ERAT (b) = = = =
Ye Shusheng M- © 1,527 = 18 1,545
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Yuan Fuer RER - - - -
Hu Xinglong EAME e - - _ _
Independent non-executive B FHTEE :
directors:
Wu Jilin REM 120 - - 120
Du Hongwei HER 120 - - 120
Li Zhou EE 120 - - 120
1887 - 18 1,905
Notes: BiE -
(@  Chen Wu was appointed as an executive director and the chief @ BZE-ZZTF=-A=-F+HE MK
executive officer with effect from 20 March 2020. REZ T AN TES RITHEESR -
(o)  Chung Tin Yan was appointed as an executive director and ) BZZE—NF+=ZA=+—H
the chief financial officer with effect from 31 December 2019. B ERTEZERNTESER
BREMEE °
(©)  Ye Shusheng resigned as an executive director and the chief © BZZE-—AF+ZA=+—8H

executive officer with effect from 31 December 2019.
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mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE-_ZT_-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILtEFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or to any of the directors as
compensation for loss of office.

No bonus was paid or receivable by directors or five highest
paid employees after considering the Group’s operation and
financial performance during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived
any emoluments in the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included one (2019: one) director whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of
the remaining four (2019: four) individuals are set out below:

10. EERRSTHAB ZEEH A

FaEREFMz2EE®)

(a)

(b)

EERESITRARZHME)

BET-_TFR-T-AFTZ
A=+t—RLFE  AEEA &L
BLLEAYIPNEFIPNS S
SRR SRR R

ZRIAEEBE_Z_TFR_
E-NFE+ZA=+—HIEFEHN
BELMBRE  EFHARERS
¥ 2 (B B 3 BB Rk R URTEAT -

HE_Z-_ZFER-_ZT—NAF+=
A=+—HLFE #BESSTHK
A B KA E B RE A o

hEREHFAL

FA - AEELERSHFALEE
—B(ZFE-NEF —R)E= M
N EX2F 2 DM RAR - Hék
ME(ZF—N%F : &) ALHIBH
ST

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-hnEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT

Salaries, wages and allowances e TEKRERL 2,991 3,090
Pension obligations RIK&EME 81 70
3,072 3,160
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mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments of five highest paid individuals who are not
directors of the Company were within the following band:

10.

BEERBRSTHRAE ZHMLL
FaEREFMz2EE®)
(b) ABEREEHFAL(E)

VIARREFHN AR T=DHMA
THMENTFIATEHE :

Number of employees

EEAH
2020 2019
t et 222 —TNF
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 0%1,000,0007 7T 4 4

No emoluments were paid to the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during both years.

No bonus was paid or receivable by directors or five highest

paid employees after considering the Group's operational and
financial performance during the year (2019: nil).

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

WEBEREEZERERA A

MEFEAGRAALR=HIHAL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

11.

12.

OTHER INCOME 11. HlA
2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH&T FH&TT
Bank interest income ERITHBHA 34 207
Food and beverage B KR 20 85
Gain on early repayment of borrowings IRRIERER WS = 1,046
Reversal of provision for asset retirement REEEEEIRBEHEREKD 103 1,378
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID-19{8FAR &R % 1,219 =
Government grants (Note) BT Bh (BT ) 1,782 =
Others HAtb 178 233
3,336 2,969

Note: Amount of approximately HK$1,080,000 (2019: nil) were relating
to exemption of value-added-tax in the PRC in relation to the
accommodation operation business.

There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these
government grants.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised
HK$432,000 relates to Employment Support Scheme provides by
the Hong Kong Government.

BiE : 491,080,000 T (=T —N4F : FE)H
FOREBPMEE L E R R BIEER
Heam -

I AR ] B2 5% IR T 8 B B B 2 R AT
IR RARBHEZ R -

BE_Z2-_ZTF+_A=+—HILHF
fE - AREBEER432,0008 THEBES
BT RERIRBLZEETE] -

FINANCE COSTS 12. @ER AN
2020 2019
—B-ERF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Finance cost on provision for asset retirement  REEE E1E R B E R BLE LA 23 74
Interest on borrowings from China Medical ~ HhEEEEEINVER A 7
Overseas Limited (the “Former Controlling ([ AT RR AR R ) 8 SRE FI) &
Shareholder”) _ 1,091
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 5,482 2,461
5,505 3,626
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

13. FTEBiMAx

2020 2019
—E-ZF —ZE—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT

Current tax — PRC corporate income tax BNERFHTE — R B (S ZEFR1S B
Provision for the year FEEBE 3,197 4,195
Deferred tax FIERIIA (592) 2,807
2,605 7,002

The Group is not subject to taxation in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduced the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit
for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

AEERRERENABRELAHSHBA
BARTIA

R-ZE—NE=RA=+—18 &EF
CRBZT—EERBEUER]) (BE7THIE
BIER(TEZR]) 5| AFIBHERET -
BEEN T N\EF=ZA-+N\BEEK
B YRXBTIE - BEFBSHKR
M AEREBREENE2EESLE
8 128.25% < AR - HBiE2HE &S
IO 2% ) BIIZ16.5% 2 B RAUH « T
B TS TR AR ) B A B 05 ) oS 4 48
16.5% M & —Fi R EF -

ARRBEFERS - BIFSH AR SIAT
WRATREGRAMBHRRLEEAH
% - MIEFENTENERDILGERE
ARDURAIA16.5% 2 BEEHE o

RETEEHEEEMEPA(NEEME
BOAD) REEMEBAERRD - HE
F 8 R B MIEFE A2 BRI 525% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

®

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE-_ZT_-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILtEFE
13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13. FREHiBE (%)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to profit FRMEHAIEGESBaRMTRE
(loss) before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as Al A (18 BRI T -
follows:
2020 2019
—E-S& —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Profit (loss) before tax BrEiADEA (&18) 144 (8,120)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable % # Fi A & BB A & i FR R a1 &
to profits or loss in the respective countries KT IR 760 (553)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 7~ A] F1Fk B 2 O FR 15 57 25 2,036 2,866
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIBBENONBEEE 261 2,008
Tax effect of utilization of tax losses not 2 AR R IAE BRI
previously recognised T8 (1,815) =
Tax losses previously recognised and reversed 2 BIRERRH B 2 75 &5 18 412 1,959
Tax effect of income not taxable BRI AR B 75 52 22 (72) =
Unrecognised temporary difference RERE R EERR 1,023 722
Income tax expense PRSI 2,605 7,002
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

14. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

15.

16.

Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

14. FRHF (EE)

Fra M (BE) MK (GEA) THIE

BEN:
2020 2019
—BC-ERF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Auditors’ remuneration for AT EBERZEEN S
— audit services — BT IR 900 1,000
— non-audit services — IERETARTS 240 545
1,140 1,545
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #13 « B&E LR EITE 3,069 3,998
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEETE 17,752 14,474
Net foreign exchange (gain) loss B 3, (Ueas ) 518 558 2 24
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID-19{EIMH S 1B F (1,219) =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BLYIZE - BB LR ERERA
property, plant and equipment BIEE A = 435
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BE AR EERABERE
right-of-use assets = 1,404

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the

Company for both years.
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings (loss) per share

The calculation of basic earmnings (loss) per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$2,063,000 (2019: loss of approximately HK$14,970,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares is
448,363,708 (2019: 448,363,708) in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings (loss) per share

No diluted earnings (loss) per share for both years were
presented as there were no potential shares in issue for both

years.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

WEBEREEZERERA A

15. B2

MESFE A - DB R E B BCRIK
BEZVNEES

16. ZREBR (E#E)
(a) SREFRF(ER)

AARHEABRLHEREREF
(BR)NAETIERARAREAR
A FEAE F A& F 492,063,000 7T
(ZZ— N5 : E1E#%14,970,000
BIL) RN AFEBEBTESE
A% A0 # F 5 2 448,363,708 M
—ZT— 14 : 448,363,7088%) °

(b) BREFRFNER)

ERMEFEREC RTEER

n

SBAN(EE) -

U2 DM (E 2 6 B A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE-_ZT_-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILtEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - RERZE
Leasehold Furniture Office  Construction
improvements  and fixtures equipment in progress Total
HENELE GRREE WAERME ERIR ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T TEx Tidn THR
Cost KA

At 1 January 2019 W=E-n%—HA—H 16,730 4,474 3,162 236 24,602
Additions AE 769 1,961 294 3,567 6,591
Transfer &z 3,798 - - (3,798) =
Exchange realignment [ 5 R (101) (89) (66) () (261)

At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-NF+ZA=1t-BER
at 1 January 2020 —“2-2%-f-H 21,196 6,346 3,390 - 30,932
Additions AE 295 97 207 25,710 26,309
Disposals HE - - ) = (4)
Exchange realignment RS 616 401 219 1,462 2698
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-E£+-H=1-H 22,107 6,844 3,812 21,172 59,935

Accumulated depreciation and ZHRERAE

impairment
At 1 January 2019 R=E-NE-A—H 10,419 3,890 1,248 = 15,957
Provided for the year FRETR 3,196 321 481 = 3,998
Impairment loss REEE 293 142 - = 435
Exchange realignment [ 5 R (75) (87) (34) = (196)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NE+ZA=t-HAR

at 1 January 2020 “Z-%F-f-H 13,833 4,266 1,695 - 19,794
Provided for the year FNaHE 2,025 541 503 - 3,069
Disposals HE - - ) = )
Exchange realignment [ R 310 296 138 = 744
At 31 December 2020 R-B-Z5+-A=+-H 16,168 5,103 2,332 - 23,603
Carrying amounts: BRTHME :
At 31 December 2020 R-B-Z35+-A=+-H 5,939 1,741 1,480 21,172 36,332
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NEF+ZR=T-H 7,363 2,080 1,695 - 11,138
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE —

“RE+ A=t HILHFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress after taking into account of their estimated
residual values, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements  shorter of the unexpired term of lease

and 7 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 5 years

Impairment assessment

The Group carried out impairment assessments of the recoverable
amount of its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 as a result of the deterioration
of performance of hotels. These assets are used in the Group’s
accommodation operations and provision of accommodation
facilities management segment.

The recoverable amount has been determined on the basis of their
value-in-use using discounted cash flow method. The cash flow
forecasts were derived from the most recent financial budgets
and estimated future cash flows covering the remaining terms as
approved by the management and using a pre-tax discount rate
of approximately 15.1% (2019: 16.7%). Other key assumptions
included growth rates on average room rates, occupancy rates,
gross profit margin and costs to revenue ratio which are determined
based on the Group’s past performance and management
expectations for the market developments.

An impairment loss of approximately HK$435,000 that has been
recognised in profit or loss in 2019 and no such impairment loss
recognised in 2020. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amounts of these CGU to exceed their
aggregate recoverable amount.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

WEBEREEZERERA A

17. Y% - BERSZE@®)

B TIARS - L% - BB RRE
HBRG ARG RREERAERE
BERATERGFENE -

HEMEEKE KRERBERRTF
(ABEERE)

RERKE 5%

I NES 5%F

B RF G

HRBEXEEEZ  AKER_T_-F
FR_ZFE-AFT-_A=+—HHY
X BEEREREREEENKE
SEETRENE - ZRFEEARAE
EEEEERRBEEREEEDE -

—I%—(@ %EE%K}EH ﬁﬁiﬁfﬁimé/ﬂﬁﬁé
EFRAEEET -Hen=2RARA R
FHKEE AR EIEBHOENRE R
BHRNHTARARESRE  FHAZ
AR RN B15A% (2T — G
16.7%) - EfthE ZRFB(BIETFHEERE
RE - AGFEE  EFNERKNAEYE 2
)R BEASENBEXEERERE
HMSERMNTEIET °

= — NE R EEEL435,0008 T ER
BRTHEZ MR_Z_ZEWERER
TEEBREEE BEEBRA %5
BREMEMEEA ST EHZ
EHeEABUMNARRMAEBRRBEK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE-_ZT_-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILtEFE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

®

18. AR - HERHE MUK

RECEIVABLES |
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FH&TT
Prepayments and deposit paid EARERE RS
Prepayments SELNEE 1,015 970
Deposits Be
Rental deposits HEZe 5,442 3,313
Other receivables Hi e RIE 239 152
Total prepayments, deposits and ENFE - BER
other receivables Hih eGR4 5 6,696 4,435
Analysed for reporting purpose as: REKENDFAE :
2020 2019
i —TNE
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
F#&T T
Non-current IETmE 2,824 3,066
Current k2l 3,872 1,369
6,696 4,435
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #H#E-_Z _ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

19. GOODWILL 10. B&

HK$ 000
FAT

Cost ﬁjzz;x
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—HA—H 1,920
Exchange realignment %)‘:‘L?E = (41)
At 31 December 2019 and at 1 January 2020 R=-F—hF+-A=+—AK=-_ZT-_TF—HF—H 1,879
Exchange realignment b EK 124
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_EH5+-A=+—H 2,003

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to N A [ 2 30 ik i IR#E A BR A &) (Huizhou Hazens East Resort
Travel Services Limited) (“Huizhou Hazens”), which engaged in
accommodation operations and provision of accommodation
facilities management services in PRC.

ORERARNE  HEESEEEMA
ERBMERBERTER2A(TEME
ED ZerRPEREEEEERRE
HEBREEERT -

2020 2019

= —FTNF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FET FET

Huizhou Hazens BEMEE 2,003 1,879

In addition to goodwill above, property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (including allocation of corporate assets)
that generate cash flows together with the related goodwill are
also included in the CGU of Huizhou Hazens for the purpose of
impairment assessment.

The recoverable amount of Huizhou Hazens has been determined
by a value-in-use calculation. The Group performed impairment
assessment on the CGU of Huizhou Hazens based on the cash
flow forecast derived from the most recent financial budgets and
estimated future cash flows covering the remaining lease term
as approved by the management and using a pre-tax discount
rate of 15.1% (2019: 16.7%) per annum. Other key assumptions
included growth rates, gross profit margin and costs to revenue
ratio which are determined based on the hotel’s past performance
and management expectations for the market developments.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of the CGU to exceed its aggregate recoverable amount.

BREdmESN  BELERSRENYD
¥ BEMRBALEREEE(BER

BIBEMDEL) EFE R E IRt AEM
B IEMRSEEEN - LUETTRERME

BMAEEMAKE S FEEIZEREER
HET ASERESOHMBEES
THREREBILREEEHENT
BREBNETRRESRE  FAF
FEHFHAAEIRE151% (T — AL F -
16.7%)  HEMAEENBEELEEN
EITRENG HAFERIBEER
K EMEREALH WL E - TR T
BERBERRAREREBEARMSE
RHOTBHETE BEERAE  %ZERX
MNEMNEGEAEESETISEH AR
EXABMNARERAERLEEA LS
B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 20. EHAEEE
Land and Motor Office
buildings vehicles equipment Total
TR
EEY RE O BAERE #z
HK$' 000 HK$ ' 000 HK$ ' 000 HK$ 000
TFET BT BT BT
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—HA—H 43,735 - - 43,735

AddItIOﬂS //J\\E - 428 - 428

Modification of lease term (ERGEEG 12,370 - - 12,370
Depreciation charge ERX (14,435) (39) = (14,474)
Impairment losses (Note f)  JF{EESE (HI3Ef) (1,404) = = (1,404)
Exchange realignment PE 5 A EE (757) @) - (764)
At 31 December 2019 and WM ZTE— A4
at 1 January 2020 TZA=+—HkK

—E2-FF—H—H 39,509 382 - 39,891
Additions (note e) RNE (Mizte) 129,648 - 77 129,725
Depreciation charge ERX (17,669) (77) (6) (17,752)
Exchange realignment b B 11,296 20 - 11,316
At 31 December 2020 R-T_TF

+—A=+—H 162,784 325 71 163,180
Notes: BiaE -

(@) For both years, the Group leases land and buildings, a motor vehicles

and office equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed periods of 2 to 15 years (2019: 2 to 15 years), 5.5 years
(2019: 5.5 years) and 5 years (2019: nil) respectively, but may have
extension and termination options. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of
a contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
and the leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

@ PWEFE AEERELERE L

REF  AERPAERE BEANS

AIREE R 2E15F(ZE—AFE : 2
Z15%F) - 55F(ZF—NF : 55%)
FSF(ZZE—NF : 8] - HATEE
HLERKKIDRERE - A ERER
B ORERERE  BETRIERRIE
o BER RGBSR
BR AEEERAYNTETETEHN
AENITROHARR o 5% FHE B I 4 e Hn T
ﬂ%%ﬁﬁfﬁFTﬁﬁwamﬁﬁ%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE —

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

()

“RE+ A=t HILHFE

20. FREEE®)

Notes: (Continued) iz : ()

The following amounts are related to leases with a related company (b) AT AT (RTEESZE

(Mr. Yuan has control over the related company): NS ) E’ﬁﬂ:’fﬁ%ﬁ :
2020 2019
—E-EH —NF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FEx FAT
Right-of-use assets FREEE 8,075 8,963
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ~ {FAREEEITERZ 1,340 2,347
Lease liabilities HEAE 9,839 10,415
Lease interests HEFE 475 562
Total cash outflow for leases HERS R EE 1,349 2,605

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for staff quarters.
As at 31 December 2020, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of leases for which short-term lease expense
was recognised during the current year. The Group had amount of
approximately HK$269,000 and HK$241,000 expenses relating to
short-term leases for 2020 and 2019 respectively.

Rent concessions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, lessors of land and
buildings provided rent concessions to the Group through rent
reductions for 1 month.

These rent concessions occurred as a direct consequence of
COVID-19 pandemic and met of all of the conditions in HKFRS
16.46B, and the Group applied the practical expedient not to assess
whether the changes constitute lease modifications. The effects
on changes in lease payments due to forgiveness or waiver by the
lessors for the relevant leases of approximately HK$1,219,000 were
recognised as other income.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised
right-of-use assets of approximately HK$129,648,000 under land
and buildings which mainly represents two leased-and-operate hotels
under construction situated in Chengdu and Wuhan for a period of
12 years and 15 years respectively. The Group applied incremental
borrowing rate of approximately 4.9% for both leases. Further details
were disclosed in the Company s circular dated 26 March 2020.

An impairment loss of approximately HK$1,404,000 that has been
recognised in profit or loss in 2019 and no such impairment loss
recognised in 2020.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
HEBEREEZERERQ

AEBETFHALE TEEFILEHHEL -
R-ZZF_ZF+_A=+—H EH
HEESRURAFEREREHEER
S‘ZE’U%H‘{iHA AEER-_ZE-FEFR
—NENEHREERDINE
269,000/%71&241 ,000/8 7T °

HERR

BHE-_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLHF
& T RIEFHHBAARANE @R
—(EAAESIMRNESHE

ZZEM 4 EHEECOVID-195% 15 B 1 3
EWEE BB KRS ER|5E16.46BIK
gl - BAEBERARITER AR
M ZEE e oEKEEESR - B
AT B BHEOE R E % 471,219,000
BTEBHENKEDNTEERAE
U A ©

HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLF
fE o REEIRE L R EEYFERER
BB E4129,648,000 7T © T EHAL
RAEAERRENMEERZRELEH
JE - FAED R A2 154 - ANEE R
MIBHERAA4.9%HIEEEEF X -
BZHBERARARIASHA T _TF
= A=+ NBEHBERAEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2020, the Group does not recognise deferred tax assets of
approximately HK$6,061,000 (2019: HK$8,315,000) in respect
of losses amounting to approximately HK$29,649,000 (2019:
HK$40,115,000) that can be carried forward against taxable
income. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$13,750,000 (2019: HK$19,885,000) that will expire in 2024.
Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the amount of temporary
differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries
for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised is
approximately HK$9,316,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: HK$12,737,000). No liability has been recognised in
respect of these differences because the Group is in a position to
control the timing of reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 21, BEREEE
The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and TXEINWRARNFERBEFERRNE
movements thereon during the current and prior years. DR IBAE R BEEE) -
Right-of-use  Accelerated Provisions
assets/Lease tax for asset
liabilities  depreciation retirement Tax loss Total
EREEE/ i
REEE MEBERE BERE BEES ot
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THr THT THET THT TEL
At 1 January 2019 W=_E-n%—A—H 600 948 434 2,813 4,795
Credited to profit or loss (Note 13) st ABE (FzH3) (30) (385) (43) (1,959) (2,807)
Exchange realignment BN AR (12) (14) 1) (24) (51)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NETZA=+—RAk

at 1 January 2020 “2-F5-f-H 558 549 - 830 1,937
Charged (credited) to profit or loss ME GrA)ER(f313)

(Note 13) 1,106 (102) - 412) 592
Exchange realignment R 99 31 - 31 161
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZEE+-F=1-H 1,763 478 - 449 2,690
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry forwards fis 75 B8 73 7% 1| 25 7] 88 5 R M S0 R SR FE AR
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit w25 - Ble5tAT *LZT)EEIEJ%%
through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December BRELEMIBEE BE_ZT_ZTF

+=-—HA=+—8" zﬁ%lmﬁﬁdﬁﬂﬁu
a8 LI §5 FE SR AR AR A 2 JE51816,061,0007%8
TT(=Z— N : 8,315,000/ 7T ) FERIE
FEFIEE EE 929,649,000 L (—F— A,
F 1 40,115,000/ 7T ) ° KR HE
BEEENR -_Z-_NF(ZFT—NF: =

T~ U4 ) B H 2 13,750,0008 T (=&
— L4 1 19,885,000/8 7T ) Z E18 - HAth
FRIEE 1B AT 4R B [n) B & 4588 -

RIEHRR REE-_T-_TF+_-A
E‘f‘*EiJJ:EEﬁEEE‘JEWE AR D
Ik BT R ERECTTE A &M
Z= B #1/59,316,0008 T ( ZFE— HL4F :
12,737,000 7T ) ° B AN S B AT AYE S
TR E RO NER 0 BZEER
BRI e TR0 - AR Ll E
BERAME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #H#E-_Z _ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The majority of the Group’s revenue from accommodation
operations and provision of accommodation facilities management
services are made via credit cards, cash or other payment
platforms such as Alipay and Wechat Pay. Hotel rooms are rented
to corporate customers with an appropriate credit history on

22, FEUNBRFX

AEENEBELEREHEBEREERE
RBERETBUEAR  AERXNE
EMEEEMINTEaEE - ARER
BRBEARBEEECENEREPREMHA=1
AWBEEEFHERFES - ARESK

credit terms of 30 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict control fi T&T FlE P REECEKFHIE -EF

over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed F AR B EAsREE o
regularly by the directors.

2020 2019

—EIERF —E-hnEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade receivables FEUBR SR 548 611

The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance for credit losses, presented based on the past due date:

TXHINRZEE B #2550 F8 YR K
(HIBRME EBREE) WARER DT -

2020 2019

bt 222 —E-NEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FAET

Neither past due nor impaired R EASORE 168 400
1-30 days past due 1230H 7 Hf 105 35
31-60 days past due 31ZE60R#HA 113 =
61-90 days past due 61Z90R #HA 138 168
Over 90 days past due 90H A i Ef 24 8
548 611

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$380,000 (2019: HK$211,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
approximately HK$162,000 (2019: HK$176,000) has been past
due 60 days or more.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set out in
Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A

RZZEZZTF+=—A=+—0 "  ~5H
B [ Uk BR SR 4 4 4R R T /& 49.380,000
BT (=T —F4F ¢ 211,0005 7T ) R
SHHEABMMEKREN - FBHA
g 0 #49162,0008 0 (ZZF — N 4F -
176,000/ 7T) B @ HA60 A 3 A L o

FE W BR BORLE RF A ) IFE R
HKRMITEE

NRA R



®% 4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24,

e MBRERHE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE-_ZT_-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILtEFE
23. INVENTORIES 23. 78
2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
Consumable stores JEFEm 110 144
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. BENRRREMENTIE
2020 2019
—B-F —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET THT
Trade payables FERTERER 108 92
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B R EAMth e FRIE 12,130 4,012
12,238 4,104
The aging analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, is as JEBRIREN B Z HHIR R DT T ¢
follows:
2020 2019
—EBCEF —ZT—NF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FH&T
0-30 days 0ZE30Kk 104 88
31-60 days 31E60K 3 4
61-90 days 61E90K 1 -
108 92
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Accruals and other payables are analysed as follows:

24,

BRI R A RIE (@)

FEETIA B K E A FE 1 SR E) o AT #5140

T
2020 2019
—EBCEF —ZE-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Accruals PEStIER
Accrued staff costs FEFFE AR 1,091 1,113
Accrued audit and professional fee [EFtEZREEE 1,600 1,372
2,691 2,485
Other payables H ity e IR
Other tax payables Efth IR 374 231
Deposits Be 355 403
Contract liabilities (note (i)) B RE &) 340 132
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FE A IR AR A 2 R I (P (i)
(note (ii) 7,276 -
Others A 1,094 761
9,439 1,527
Total accruals and other payables FEstEE REMENTIEARE 12,130 4,012

Notes:

B -

(i) The Group would collect deposits for corporate customers. (i)
Whenever the progress towards complete satisfaction or the relevant
performance obligation is passed, such contract liabilities would
be derecognised and the respective amount would be recognised
as revenue. The balance of contract liabilities is expected to be

recognised as revenue in next financial year.

(i) The amount represents amounts due to non-controlling interests (i)
of approximately HK$4,017,000 and HK$3,259,000 due to the
Chengdu Partner and the Wuhan Partner (as defined in Note 35)
respectively. The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

WEBEREEZERERA A

AEBERHEETPRIZS - E2H
EREEITHERENEENEZERE
B - AR NAEBRBURRER - M
FASESERA/NE - ANBEAER
TR MEM B ERER SN -

ZRRIE RN REA (ERH MEVEAE
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mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —

“EFE+ A=t HIFE

25. PROVISION FOR ASSET RETIREMENT 25.

Under the terms of the tenancy agreements signed with landlords,
the Group shall vacate and re-instate the leased hotel premises at
the Group’s cost upon expiry of the relevant tenancy agreements
in 1 to 12 years (2019: 1 to 13 years). Provision is therefore made
for the best estimate of the expected reinstatement costs to be

RIBREZTZITNEERBEGNR - K&

BARHBEAEHRRER(—E+=2F)
(ZZE-NF: —ET=F)EREHEN
SEHERBEREFREEEESME -
L B 1 8 HA A A A I8 IR A AN A S B 4T 9

incurred. Movements of provision for asset retirement are as HETHEITRE  BBEEEERBHENE
follows: R :

2020 2019

. i —TNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

At 1 January n—H—H 869 2,197

Provision utilised BB G (377) =

Reversal of provision for asset retirement REEE EE R EER (103) (1,378)

Finance cost on provision for asset HREEEERBHNORERAN

retirement (Note 12) (Mf7E12) 23 74

Exchange realignment e 3, A 2 32 (24)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8” 444 869

Less: non-current portion W SERENER S (444) (397)

Current portion mENER - 472

Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

26. LEASE LIABILITIES

26. HEEE

Lease payments

Present value of
lease payments

HERFR HEANRRE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—ECEF —T-hEF ZBDEF —EhF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THEIT FExT T
Within one year —FR 30,780 13,941 30,158 13,521
In the second to fifth years, HE-RERF
inclusive (PEEEMT) 66,729 20,771 57,927 18,432
After five years AFE 139,371 19,465 89,467 12,929
236,880 54177 177,552 44 882
Less: Future finance charges Ji @ R gEE & (59,328) (9,295)
Present value of lease liabilities FHE & FIRE 177,552 44,882
Less: Amount due for B & A REE
settlement within B8 ZFIR
12 months (shown (BRI ED
under current liabilities) BET) (30,158) (13,521)
Amount due for settlement ~ + —1E A& R HEE
after 12 months 2R 147,394 31,361
Notes: BfaE -

() At 31 December 2020, the incremental borrowing rates ranged from
4.2% to 9% (2019: 4.75% to 9%). Interest rates are fixed at the
contract dates and thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate

risk.

(b) Lease liabilities of approximately HK$9,839,000 (2019:

HK$10,415,000) are related to leases with a related party.

() Lease liabilities are mainly denominated in RMB.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A

R-B-TF+-A=+—0  HEH
HIE A F4.2%E9% (ZF—N%F
475%E9%)  FIERAMEMERE -
A AT R AT AR S -

HE & E49,839,000/8 T (—FE— A
F 10,415,000/ 70 ) ELRFEE S A E R

HER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

27. BORROWINGS

28.

27. &5

2020 2019
—ECEF —E—NF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B EE FHET FHT
Borrowings from the Controlling R AR AR A E X
Shareholder (@ 37,026 15,000

Notes: BfaE -

(@) As at 31 December 2020, the Group has borrowings of @ RZZEZZEF+=—_A=+—H &
approximately HK$37,026,000 (2019: HK$15,000,000) from the SEHRBEREBEERBRREZE XL
Controlling Shareholder. The borrowings are unsecured, non-interest £ 37,026,000t (= F — JL&F
bearing and repayable on demand. 15,000,000/ 70) ° fERAEIKIT - &

BRIZERBEREE -

(o)  During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group signed an b)) BEZZT-—HAF+ZA=+—HIEHF
agreement with the Former Controlling Shareholder, pursuant & AEEEFIERRRERHZE -
to which, the Group early repaid RMB10,680,000 (equivalent BEZHBE  AEEREEUARE
to approximately of HK$11,906,000) to the Former Controlling 10,680,000 7t ( 48 & 7 %Y 11,906,000
Shareholder to settle principal amount of borrowings of approximately Bi) EBEAERBREEGEREASH
HK$13,800,000. At the date of repayment, the carrying amount 13,800,000/87C - RERE KX  BRZ
of the borrowings was approximately of HK$12,952,000 resulting BRE{EX) 512,952,000/ 7T © A ILFER
in the recognition of a gain on early repayment of borrowings of R EEEFIKEL1,046,0008 7T
approximately of HK$1,046,000.

SHARE CAPITAL 28. k&

Number of
shares Amount
REE ot |
HK$'000
FAT
Authorised: AR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 FREEC.OET(ZT—NE :
(2019: HK$0.01) each 0.01%7T) &R
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, RZT-NFE—HA—QH"
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 —E-NF+ZA=+—8"
—ETF-A-HRK
—E-TF+-A=+—H 780,000,000 7,800
Issued and fully paid: BRITRERE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, RZTE-NFE—HA—H"
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 —E-NF+ZA=+—8"
—EEF-A-HRK
—E-TF+-A=+—H 448,363,708 4,484
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise
the return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment of
dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by capital. Net
debt is calculated as total debts less cash and cash equivalents.
Capital comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital, share
premium and other reserves).

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting periods were as

28. A& (&)

AEEEAEENERRREAKERE
FELE  URBBLERNBBILREG
TRR&EA L -

AEBIZLHRERBRERNEHE - AE
BERREEAGRE YRBKERRR
HRAEERBRFHENECMAR - RT
MR EANGER  AREAEEH
BB XM - BITHBRD - RERD
BAHE BEREBEHRLEEEN
BB

AEERBEBEREALXIKEESR
Ko ZHRRBEFERNELRST
BEFRENIEEERERRESERREE
BYEtE - EAm2HER(BRA - Kk
05 8 M EL M & ) /B AK -

RBEMRNEERBLRNT -

follows:

2020 2019

—B-FF —TNF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FBT

Debt (note) EIE (P aE) 221,854 59,882
Cash and cash equivalents HeERReEEY (19,969) (11,201)
Net debt BEIRFE 201,885 48,681
Equity attributable to owners of the Company Z"A ml#EH A JE(EER 7,073 3,849
Net debt to equity ratio IR FRESE R« L& 2,854% 1,265%

Note: Debt includes borrowings, lease liabilities and amounts due to
non-controlling interests included in trade and other payables.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A
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mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 29, X TR R 3R
THE COMPANY

2020 2019
—EIEF —E—hnF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiBT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBREZI&E 4,730 4,730
Rental deposits MEZS 1,416 1,394
Prepayments TERTEIR 104 145
6,250 6,269
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments and other deposit AN I KA MRS 437 315
Rental deposits MEZS 1,394 =
Bank and cash balances RIT RIS LR 196 123
2,027 438
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETBI B~ B FRIAR 13,320 11,984
Accruals and other payables FEETE R R A FE FRIE 1,541 1,390
Borrowings EE 22,767 15,000
37,628 28,374
Net current liabilities FBREBEE (35,601) (27,936)
Net liabilities B8EFE (29,351) (21,667)
Equity s
Share capital f& s 4,484 4,484
Reserves {1 (33,835) (26,151)
Total deficit B AL4E (29,351) (21,667)
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 N-E-—F-_A-t+tAEESSHt
February 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: R ETHL TEERERE
Yuan Fuer Chung Tin Yan
RER FEPNY
Director Director
EE EZE

Annual Report 2020
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mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #H#E-_Z _ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE

30. RESERVES

(@) The Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

(b) The Company

30. A&
(a) A%£HE

AEERENSEREY INERE
T &ﬁ@iﬁﬂﬂl)\%%& ratE

(b) AARF

Share Shareholder’s Accumulated
premium contributions losses Total
B 6B BRFEE RitEE Fobe]
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT FAT TAT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—-hF—H—H 261,579 3,550 (276,046) (10,917
Total comprehensive loss FAEHEELRE
for the year - - (15,234) (15,234)
At 31 December 2019 and  R=ZT—NF
at 1 January 2020 +TZA=+—AHAk
—T-FF—H—H 261,579 3,550 (291,280) (26,151)
Total comprehensive loss FAEEEERRE
for the year - - (7,684) (7,684)
At 31 December 2020 i e e
+-B=+—H 261,579 3,550 (298,964) (33,835)
31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31. IAREE
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities for both HE - EEK-_ZET—HhE+_-A4

years 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
& BB & BE R G R QR

=t+—BIUEWEFE - ANEEILEEMR
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mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE-_ZT_-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILtEFE

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. EREE
2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition B 5] #HERRLRA B IS IRE
of property, plant and equipment BERBEEDE

contracted for but not provided in the BEMEEERRS

consolidated financial statements 12,002 32

33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. EXBEE LIRS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances MG ETMBEREREMABTHE 2 B
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the R G REBRI  REBRFEANGIATNE
Group had the following transactions with its related parties during BHR5
the year.
(a) Key management compensation (@) FEEEBEAEHE
2020 2019
b e 222 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHT
Salaries, wages and allowance e TERER 900 938
Pension obligations BRESEE 18 18
918 956

Annual Report 2020
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mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. EXBE#BARZ (2

(Continued)

(b) The Group had the following significant

(b) AEERFEAELTEKEBEE

transactions with the related party during AR5
the year:
2020 2019
—ETERF —T-hEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FET FAT
Repayment of borrowings to the MANERR AR R (EE B
former controlling shareholder = 11,906
Accommodation operations and RE R REEEER
provision of accommodation RIEBEERMEEERS
facilities management services FMIRHAEEB AN
and provision of accommodation
consultation revenue from related
parties (i) 9,311 3,512
Rental expenses charged by — R TN E S
a related party (i) 1,349 2,605
Notes: BsE

0} Mr. Yuan has control over the related parties.

(ii) A related party, controlled by Mr. Yuan, provides an office for
certain subsidiaries free of charge during the year.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A

()  RELHHEEE T EE -

(i) —B@EBH(BAREERE)NE
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mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE-_ZT_-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILtEFE

33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. EXBE#BARZ (&)

(Continued)

(c) The Group had the following balances with the (c) AEENRFREBBESEUT
related party during the year: o

2020 2019

i —E-hEF

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

F=E TR TAT

Other payables to related parties o {th {5 BB 5 5R0E i) 281 149

Note: BaE

(i) Mr. Yuan has control over the related parties. The balances 0] RS LA 6 RE o

arose from the utilities and other operating expenses paid 4EEA TR B E AN £ B M B B 5

on behalf of the Group by the related parties, for which they EBHNEBAREAERSAHA
should be reimbursed by the Group. SRR EmEEL Y -

(d) As 31 December 2020, the Controlling Shareholder had made (d R-ZE-_TFE+-_A=+—1 #&
available a credit facility up to the amount of HK$350,000,000 BRI R IE — AR P (G s B A IR
(2019: HK$350,000,000) to the Group on normal commercial REBM KR AAEBIEH S EE
terms or better to the Group. The borrowings drawn under % 350,000,000/ ( —Z&E— 1.F :
the Controlling Shareholder’s credit facility shall be repayable 350,000,000 7T ) K{EE M & 5
on the date as set out in the individual borrowing agreements B BREIERREEESEMER
and are interest-free and unsecured. The Group may request e IR R B R BB B
for drawdown at any time prior to 7 August 2022. As at 31 BHWHERERBE NEHRELY - AT H
December 2020, credit facility of amount of approximately AREFBR-_ZE-—FN\A+HAE
HK$312,974,000 (2019: HK$335,000,000) is available for BESKIEE - R —FF+— 8
use. =+—HB ' ®#%1312,974,000/8

7T(=Z— A4 : 335,000,000 7T )
MEERmEEENA -
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mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #H#E-_Z _ZF+_-_A=+—HILFE
34. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 4. BEEHEENEEED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising THRARFINAEEREETDEENE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash BEEE  BREREeRIIEEEH @A
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for EBEANABEREREEHEAL
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the AERBEREFSHEBEAREELREE
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from EREXREARBETHELENEERE
financing activities. HB5y ©
Total
Amounts liabilities
due to from
non-controlling Lease financing
interests liabilities  Borrowings activities
METE
FEHIEEIR EEMN
BERTE HEsE &R =lEpat]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FAEL FAET FET
At 1 January 2019 —E-NF—HF—H - 46,573 21,861 68,434
Change in cash flows Henedy - (16,096) (6,906) (23,002)
Non-cash changes eyl -
— Interest charged —MBZH = 2,461 1,091 3,552
- Additions of lease liabilities —HEAEEM - 428 - 428
~ Modifications of lease liabilities - HEAEES - 12,588 - 12,588
— Gain on early repayment —REEEER W=
of borrowings - (1,046) (1,046)
- Exchange realignments —ERAR - (1,072) (1,072)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-N%F
at 1 January 2020 +’ﬂ:+*5&
RZZ-FF-A—H - 44,882 15,000 59,882
Change in cash flows Bened 6,884 (12,789) 21,260 15,355
Non-cash changes &
- Interest charged —FIEXH - 5,482 - 5,482
~ Additions of leas liabilities —THEBGEM - 129,725 - 129,725
- COVID-19-related rent concession ~ —COVID-19t8ETAEE % = (1,219) = (1,219)
- Exchange realignments S 392 11,471 766 12,629
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-TEF
—A=t+—H 7,276 177,552 37,026 221,854

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A
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mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are as

35. B A TFHE

R-ZZE_ZF+_A=+—H HEA

follows: RIZFIBAT
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid/ Percentage
registration and registered of ownership Principal
Company name operation capital interest activities
SR, BETR BEA
ARER R EE BHRE/EMEE BRESL TEER
Huizhou Hazens East Resort Travel The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% (indirect)  Accommodation operations and
Services Limited provision of accommodation
facilities management services
BMEERPERERBERAA H AR #1,000,0007T 100% () EBEEENRERESREEERE
Shenzhen Yingde Tourists Co., Ltd.* The PRC HK$8,000,000 100% (indirect)  Accommodation operations and
provision of accommodation
facilities management services
R BEEEER AR H 8,000,0007T 100% () HEBEEENMREBESREEERE
Shenzhen Modern Tourists Co., Ltd.*  The PRC HK$1,000,000 100% (indirect)  Accommodation operations and
provision of accommodation
facilities management services
AEERFEEFRAR HE 1,000,000/ 100% () REBEEERRUEESREERRS
Legend Strategy Corporate The PRC HK$5,000,000 100% (indirect)  Provision of accommodation
Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* consultations services
WECEERORIERAE H 5,000,000 7T 100% (k) REEEZARS
Grand China Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% (indirect) Cost centre
ordinary share
PEEEXER A BE 18T 100% () BLAH L
Timik
Net Media Finance Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 100% (indirect) Provision of accommodation
Limited ordinary shares consultations services
BEERMBEEERAA BE 20,000,000%7T 100%(fE) REEEZARL
TiER
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mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are as
follows: (Continued)

35. MBS =)

N_Z_TFE+_A=+—HB " HEBLQ
BlZFEWT : ()

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid/ Percentage
registration and registered of ownership Principal

Company name operation capital interest activities

AR, BETR BEA

ARER R EE B#R/ ZREX EREAk FEEER

Chengdu Legend Strategy Hotel The PRC RMB500,000 51% (indirect)  Accommodation operations and
Management Company Limited” provision of accommodation
(“Chengdu LS”) (note) facilities management services

RN RBEERERAG HE AR®500,0007C 51% (k) EEZEMRUESREEERY
(TR EN 2% 1) (RifaT)

Wuhan Legend Strategy Hotel The PRC RMB500,000 51% (indirect)  Accommodation operations and
Management Company Limited* provision of accommodation
(“Wuhan LS”) (note) facilities management services

RENDEEERERAR HE AR #500,0007T 51% () EREEERRAEERBERRE

(TEVEAR D) (Far)
Wholly owned Foreign Enterprise
i Partially owned Foreign Enterprise

Note: Chengdu LS and Wuhan LS are considered as subsidiaries of the
Group because the Group has held 51% for both ownership and
voting rights since the date of incorporation. The Group also have the
right to appoint three out of five directors of the board of directors of
Chengdu LS and Wuhan LS. The Group has a sufficient dominant
voting interests to direct the relevant activities of Chengdu LS and
Wuhan LS and therefore has controlled over Chengdu LS and Wuhan
LS.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of the year.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A
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mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of

35. MBS =)

TRINFAREL EERIFE RN

the Group that have material non-controlling interests: BB ARG
Proportion of
Place of ownership interests
incorporation and voting rights Loss allocated Accumulated loss on
and principal held by non-controlling to non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary place of business interests interests interests
RlAEE FERER TR FERER
WEARER RETEXMY FERRRRREELA ARER FERERRTER
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Z8S8F “TonF 0 ZBSBF “ToNF 0 ZBSBFE CTONA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL THEx THT THEL TAL TEL
Chengdu LS The PRC 49% N/A (2,784) - (2,784) -
DEYIpA i TER
Wuhan LS The PRC 49% N/A (1,949) - (1,949) -
HEMA il Gyl

Individual immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests

HEFERERNEANER
WEAR

Information on non-wholly-owned subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amount before intragroup elimination.

(286) (229)

(5,019) (229)

FEREAERFERESZNIEZEM
BARER

BRAASERBEAFEREDNFH

BRRZHBERGRESHINWAT - AT
MBERBREZ 27 SREANLHR 2 28
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—_ZFE-_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE

35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 35. B A RFHBE®
(Continued)
Chengdu LS REH2E
2020
—E-ZF
HK$’000
FHET
Current assets MENEE 194
Non-current assets ERBNVEE 69,128
Current liabilities mEE & 23,616
Non-current liabilities EmEBE 51,388
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 72 &I#EHB A JE(h#E (2,898)
Equity attributable to non-controliing interests  JF¥2 A% # 25 FE (L #E 25 (2,784)

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A
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mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIFE

35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 35. B A RFE®)

(Continued)

Chengdu LS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Chengdu LS had
not yet commenced business. Chengdu LS had no revenue
and approximately HK$5,376,000 as expenses and recorded
approximately HK$5,376,000 loss for the year, of which the loss
attributable to owners of the Company and loss attributable to
non-controlling interest of Chengdu LS were HK$2,742,000
and HK$2,634,000 respectively. Total comprehensive loss was
approximately HK$5,682,000, of which total comprehensive loss
attributable to owners of the Company and total comprehensive
loss attributable to non-controlling interest of Chengdu LS were
HK$2,896,000 and HK$2,784,000 respectively.

Chengdu LS had net cash outflow from operating activities, net
cash outflow from investing activities, net cash inflow from financing
activities and net cash inflow were approximately of HK$1,087,000,
HK$14,073,000, HK$15,284,000 and HK$124,000 respectively
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Priority distribution amount

From the date of commencement of business of the Chengdu LS
to the expiry of the Chengdu Tenancy Agreement (the “Chengdu
Priority Period”), & JIl 072 8 J& & 32 E R A 7 (Shenzhen Legend
Strategy Hotel Management Company Limited) (the “Shenzhen
LS”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, shall,
subject to the laws in the PRC, have priority over B2F% (Ms. Liao
Zihan) (the “Chengdu Partner”) in respect of distribution from the
amount (the “Chengdu Distributable Amount”) of profit after tax
(after offsetting accumulated losses and contribution to statutory
reserve) and adding back non-cash items including depreciation
and amortisation charges of Chengdu LS, which on average, is
based on around 12% of the proportionate capital commitment (in
form of share capital, if paid up, and aforesaid shareholders’ loans)
to be provided by Shenzhen LS (the “Chengdu Priority Amount”) for
each 12 month period over the Chengdu Priority Period.

BER N 2K (E)

HE T _TF+-_A=+—HItHF
B RE D2 ERAREZERS - KE D
ORI AW & #5,376,000 8
TIEARY - I8R5 & 18 #95,376,000
BT R ARREHEE ARBGEE &K
Hhz BEEREZEREBEED A
2,742,000 7t % 2,634,000/ 7T - 2 &
18 4B #) 55,682,000/ 7T © HA AR
ABA ARG EEESERERKE N 2
BIEEREREEEEERAED A
2,896,0007 7T %.2,784,00076 7T, °

HE-_T-_ZTF+_A=+—HILHF
B REBHZEANEE TR ST F
HoRBTHRSRLFE  BEETH
RERANFEEBRESAAFES B
#1,087,000% 7T * 14,073,000 /% JT °
15,284,0007%8 70 % 124,000/ 7T °

1B 7k BE

KRB ZAREBMEXBEE W3
JEm B (TR EER]) - RABMEE
2EMBARRIIMEZBEEEERA
A(DRYIEDZ ) SR B hBEERRE T
W(TBEF R (TREEIERH]E
TR RS R BB B & m F (R
HAEFTEBRRAEERENHINEER
(TRERR Dk FR ) - WANEIFR £ IR
B(BRAELBEER)  FAMS
ERRYIEZR K E B L HE 1218 A
B P E (R 4% L 19 51 38 B9 B A AHE (AR R
(mege) k LB RERN L) 4
12%([REBESHEE -
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35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Chengdu LS (Continued)
Priority distribution amount (Continued)

If the Chengdu Distributable Amount exceeds 24% of the total
capital commitment of Chengdu LS, parties shall share the
Chengdu Distributable Amount (other than those amounts which
will firstly be distributed to Shenzhen LS and Chengdu Partner
under the aforesaid arrangement) according to their respective
interests in Chengdu LS. The aforesaid benchmarks of 12% and
24%, and accordingly the actual Chengdu Priority Amount for
a particular 12 month period (the “Chengdu Account Period”)
(starting from the business commencement date of Chengdu
Hotel) may vary in different stages of Chengdu Hotel depending on
its renovation period, ramp-up period etc. The average Chengdu
Priority Amount of 12% is determined by the Company after
considering the market return rate of companies engaging in hotel
business and expected return from its investment in the Chengdu
Hotel. Both parties shall continue to be entitled to the relevant
Chengdu Distributable Amount, if not distributed, pursuant to the
Chengdu Agreement and the articles of Chengdu LS.

The determination of the Chengdu Distributable Amount will be on a
standalone basis for each Chengdu Account Period. Nevertheless,
if Chengdu LS records accumulated losses and/or is subject to
mandatory contribution to its statutory surplus, profit after tax of
Chengdu LS for the relevant Chengdu Account Period will first be
used to offset the accumulated losses and/or make contribution
to statutory surplus in order to comply with the relevant legal
requirements. The balance of such profit after tax will then be made
reference for determining the Chengdu Distributable Amount. Both
parties agreed to determine the Chengdu Priority Amounts based
on audited accounts for each Chengdu Account Period prepared
by an independent auditor to be engaged by Chengdu LS.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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35. MBS =)

BE N 2K (&)
1B R RE ()

fisi B BB 7] 73k & RE B 8L AK BB ) 2 R Y 48
BAREIER24% « RIS T ARRBES
FERKE N 2 EN S B E A &
k&8 (RE T E LDk TR
A RKEEERHHNZESEERIN) ©
Fult12% M 24% E%E - AR AT
FEE121E A B ([ &2 st A D (B
EEIE XSG 2 BRE)MERKEMEL
SR kg AKENE SR S HA R g
RHETRBEMAMER - KEMEL
SREIFHE12% - TIAAREIKE B
EHEEBNARNT SR REALE
HAEEERENTEHRHERMETE ° 1B
B EB I KA D 2 R ARR - &5
154 4B 5 REEBUR Bk 28 A) 2 Ik £ 58 (40
REDIK) °

P EB A 20 I & B8 A AR R (K BB & 5t H
RMREBEEMET - AW - WAEBAN
ZRERFRFBRRHAREERH
TEH R BIEFER - BN 2R R BRK
e St IR A BRI & 58 B AR 3
RABER S SIEREEERG - Hit
BTHRBAEMAE - BE - BRANRR®S
T ) 48 B 8 F 5 TBE TE AR R A) 0 Tk < B Y
2E - FINETRBREBKE N 2ZHK
FTEENBLZBMARAEN SRS
ARG ERREEERBELSHE -
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35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 35. B A RFE®)

(Continued)
Chengdu LS (Continued) REH 2 & &)
Right of purchase ElfE#

The Group is given a right to purchase (the “Chengdu Right
of Purchase”) all the 49% interests in Chengdu LS held by the
Chengdu Partner if (i) Chengdu Partner and/or Chengdu LS cannot
fulfill their obligations to Shenzhen LS in respect of the distribution
of the Chengdu Priority Amount in any Chengdu Account
Period (e.g. the actual Chengdu Priority Amount is less than the
benchmark to be agreed for each Chengdu Account Period); or (i)
Chengdu LS records losses after tax for two consecutive Chengdu
Account Periods, during the first three Chengdu Account Periods
(the “Chengdu Right of Purchase Period”).

The purchase price will be based on the investment costs
committed by the Chengdu Partner in Chengdu LS (i.e. any paid-
up capital and shareholder’s loans) less proportionate losses of
Chengdu LS, if any, during the Chengdu Right of Purchase Period.

The Chengdu Right of Purchase is regarded as a derivative financial
instruments. The directors of the Company assessed the fair value
of the Chengdu Right of Purchases with reference to the valuation
performed by Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal Limited (“Vincorn”),
a firm of independent qualified professional valuers, which assess
the fair value of the Chengdu Right of Purchase using binomial
model. The amount is considered insignificant on initial recognition
and as at 31 December 2020 and therefore were not recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.

Further details were disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 26
March 2020.

RER B TR @B ([ARER e R ])
REBEERH T B R 2 EB49% R N
ZEMER - BIRE()KEA ERH R,
FXER 71 2 & R BERLERI R BB & 51 B 73
IR EBE T RETT R FHIRYIMZ M
RE(PINERNRSEESBINAE
RE ST HRBENERE)  HEE=
fEpE & st IR (TR EEEH ) - ARES
h 2R EEEMEX S BREKSKR
TIREIR

[B] 5 (B A5 AR 35 A D [0 i B Ak BB & 1R R
FERLAKER ) 2R ASE MR E RS (BNE]
BREARERE v&ﬁﬁ%ﬂz 3i7dnd
pIFtEmMER (A )R

FRECI BB REEEATESHTA - AR
RIEEREB IR ERBEMERMEL S
AR EBR AR (545 ) EITAE
B AR ERBEN QA FE - A=A
ZHEAEXTENESBEEEN A TE -
RUTHEREERR_ZTE_EF+=A
=+—H ZeEHEAETEXR Bt
W ENERE B TSR R IER ©

ﬁﬁﬁ—fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ$“ﬂﬁﬁﬁi
7—7£'E H +/\E|Z
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 35. B A RFHBE®
(Continued)

Wuhan LS HEWE
2020
—E-EF
HK$’000
FET
Current assets BB E 139
Non-current assets EMEBEE 87,334
Current liabilities mENAE 21,830
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 69,618
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 2R RI#EAG A JE(L#ERS (2,027)
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests  JE2 A% # 25 e (L #E 25 (1,948)

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A
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35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Wuhan LS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Wuhan LS had
not yet commenced business. Wuhan LS had no revenue
and approximately HK$3,763,000 as expenses and recorded
approximately HK$3,763,000 loss for the year, of which the
loss attributable to owners of the Company and loss attributable
to non-controlling interest of Wuhan LS were HK$1,919,000
and HK$1,844,000 respectively. Total comprehensive loss was
approximately HK$3,977,000, of which total comprehensive loss
attributable to owners of the Company and total comprehensive
loss attributable to non-controlling interest of Wuhan LS were
HK$2,028,000 and HK$1,949,000 respectively.

Wuhan LS had net cash outflow from operating activities, net
cash outflow from investing activities, net cash inflow from
financing activities and net cash outflow were approximately of
HK$1,372,000, HK$13,325,000, HK$14,483,000 and HK$214,000
respectively during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Priority distribution amount

From the date of commencement of business of the Wuhan LS to
the expiry of the Wuhan Tenancy Agreement (the “Wuhan Priority
Period”), Shenzhen LS shall, subject to the laws in the PRC,
have priority over & A LUl (Mr. Sun Taishan®) (“Wuhan Partner”) in
respect of distribution from the amount (the “Wuhan Distributable
Amount”) of profit after tax (after offsetting accumulated losses
and contribution to statutory reserve) and adding back non-
cash items including depreciation and amortisation charges of
Wuhan LS, which on average, is based on around 12% of the
proportionate capital commitment (in form of share capital, if paid
up, and aforesaid shareholders’ loans) to be provided by Shenzhen
Subsidiary (the “Wuhan Priority Amount”) for each 12 month period
over the Wuhan Priority Period.

35. MBS =)

BOEZ ()

 E_FE_EF+_-_A=1+—HILHF
B REMERRFARER - NEME
FAE A 4 U 55 K2 493,763,00078 TT1E A
MY - WEkBE1E43,763,0008 T * &
AR EHER ARGEERRZEIE
7 7 2= JE 15 ES 1B 99 Bl 21,919,000 %
Je 1,844,000 7T - ZEEELEL B
3,977,000 7 « AR ARFHEAR AEG
FHBEBRERIEMZIEERERE
fh2EEIBLARE S 552,028,000 T &
1,949,000/8 T ©

HE_Z-_TF+_A=1+—HIF
g - _t/%ﬁ EEEEEEIR M F
B oRBEDHEESALFE BEED
BeRANFERBRLFED LD
41,372,000 % 7T + 13,325,000 /% T
14,483,000/ 7T }:214,000/8 7T °

Kkl

REEMARZEBHZEREHERZEE
WMAIE(TRZELEER]) - FYhAE KR
BREEEARAEANL(THEARLEE]D
([BREERH ) BEEEDIREIENE
RIBR B &R F (A 25t BB R mE
EREHOHRFON B (TR ETDIKE
) WHNE3EBREEE (BETE ki#
SHER) FHms HENRYIMBAF
REVEELHAE12(0 A BE TR iR
BT ErE ZREE (RN (ES#R) &
FHREREROE ) £912% ([ UEE %L
SREHE -
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35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Wuhan LS (Continued)
Priority distribution amount (Continued)

If the Wuhan Distributable Amount exceeds 24% of the total capital
commitment of Wuhan LS, both parties shall share the Wuhan
Distributable Amount (other than those amounts which will firstly be
distributed to Shenzhen LS and Wuhan Partner under the aforesaid
arrangement) according to their respective interests in Wuhan
LS. The aforesaid benchmarks of 12% and 24%, and accordingly
the actual Wuhan Priority Amount for a particular 12 month
period (the “Wuhan Account Period”) (starting from the business
commencement date of Wuhan Hotel) may vary in different stages
of Wuhan LS depending on its renovation period, ramp-up period
etc. The average Wuhan Priority Amount of 12% is determined by
the Company after considering the market return rate of companies
engaging in hotel business and expected return from its investment
in the Wuhan LS. Both parties shall continue to be entitled to the
relevant Wuhan Distributable Amount, if not distributed, pursuant to
the Wuhan Agreement and the articles of Wuhan LS.

The determination of the Wuhan Distributable Amount will be on a
standalone basis for each Wuhan Account Period. Nevertheless,
if Wuhan LS records accumulated losses and/or is subject to
mandatory contribution to its statutory surplus, profit after tax
of Wuhan LS for the relevant Wuhan Account Period will first be
used to offset the accumulated losses and/or make contribution
to statutory surplus in order to comply with the relevant legal
requirements. The balance of such profit after tax will then be made
reference for determining the Wuhan Distributable Amount. Both
parties agreed to determine the Wuhan Priority Amounts based on
audited accounts for each Wuhan Account Period prepared by an
independent auditor to be engaged by Wuhan LS.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
MEBRBREEZERERA A
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35.

36.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Wuhan LS (Continued)
Right of purchase

Shenzhen LS is given a right to purchase (the “Wuhan Right of
Purchase”) all the 49% interests in Wuhan LS held by the Wuhan
Partner if () Wuhan Partner and/or Wuhan LS cannot fulfill their
obligations to Shenzhen LS in respect of the distribution of the
Wuhan Priority Amount in any Wuhan Account Period (e.g. the
actual Wuhan Priority Amount is less than the benchmark to be
agreed for each Wuhan Account Period); or (i) Wuhan LS records
losses after tax for two consecutive Wuhan Account Periods,
during the first three Wuhan Account Periods (the “Wuhan Right of
Purchase Period”).

The purchase price will be based on the investment costs
committed by the Wuhan Partner in Wuhan LS (i.e. any paid-up
capital and shareholder’s loans) less proportionate losses of Wuhan
LS, if any, during the Wuhan Right of Purchase Period.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 27 February 2021.

35.

36.
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LIfERE
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFUBHRE

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the ~ AEBBAERAMBEENEEANEERLE
last five financial years is as follows: BOMEWT :

Results E5

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZBoBE —_T-hF ZE-N\F —T—+F ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET FET T T

(Restated)
(#e=E31))
Revenue Was 50,678 45,585 45,547 16,282 17,655
Profit (loss) before tax BRAE AT A (B ) 144 (8,120) (2,077) (42,570) (100,490)
Income tax (expense) credit ~ FT{SH (FIs2 )R (2,605) (7,002) (3,110) 409 2,201
Loss for the year FAEE (2,461) (15,122) (5,187) (42,161) (98,289)
Attributable to: AT AL :
Owners of the Company RATEBA 2,063 (14,970) (4,378) (42,089 (98,289
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR I A (4,524) (152) (809) (72) -
(2,461) (15,122) (5,187) (42,161) (98,289)
Assets, liabilities and Non-controlling interests BE - BERFERERS
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—BoRE —T-NF —T/\F —T+tF T AKF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FAET FAET FiEIT
(Restated)
€ ==70)
Total assets BERE 231,528 71,236 99,169 66,307 81,091
Total liabilities BfERRE (229,474) (67,609) (79,810) (45,237) (68,264)
Non-controlling interests AT 2 5,019 223 76 (743) -
7,073 3,850 19,435 20,327 12,827

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
& BB & BE R G R QR
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